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services.

Financial Highlights

(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Income:

Net interest income (Taxable Equivalent) . ............. e
Netincome ..L ... . .

Per Share:

Basiceamings .......... ... .. ..
Diluted BaMINES . .ot e e

Average Balances:

Assets ..... b
Loans, net . .L .
Deposits ....L. .

Shareholders’ eqUItY . . . .. .. ..ot

Financial Ratios:

Returnon averageassets .................. ... .. i,
Return on average BaUItY (1) ..o e e

Consolidated tier 1 capital to:

Total average assets {leverage) ......... .. . ... i,
Filsk~adjusted BSSEIS ..
Total capital to r|sk -adjusted assets ... L e e e
Net loans charjjed off (recovered) to average loans ......................

Allowance for Ioan losses to nonperforming loans .. ............ ... ... ....
Efficiency ratio] .. ...
Dividend payout ratio .. ... .. ..ot e

Per share information of common stock

2005 .
Firstquarter . 1. ... ... ... . ... ..
Second QUANET . . . .o\t e
Thirdquarter. | . ... ... ..
Fourthquarter! .. ... ... ... . ... ... ....... ...

2006
Firstquarter .|, ... ... .. ... ... .. o oL
Second quarter. . ............ .
Thirdquarter. ... .
Fourthquarter! . ... ... .. ... ... . ... ... ... .....

(1) Excludes the effact of accumulated other comprehensirre income.

TrustCo Bank Corp NY is a savings and loan holding company headquartered in 'Glenville, New York. The Company
is the largest fmancral services company headquartered in the Capital Region of New York State'and its principal
subsidiary, Trustco Bank, operates 92 community banking offices and 80 Automatrc Teller Machrnes throughout the
Bank’s market area. The Company serves five states and 21 counties with a broad range of community banking
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Years ended December 31,
Percent
2006 2005 Change
$ 101,370 /107,948 (6.09)%
' 45,325 | 58,989 (23.16)
605 | 787 (23.13)
: 603 ) .782 {22.89)
* 319 1 305 4.59
r o
2,973,952 2,844,974 4.53
1,611,355 1,336,899 20.53
' 2,628,338 2,505,967 4.88
1‘ 230,259 226,571 1.63
! 1.52% 2.07 (26.57)
. 18.71 26.07 (28.23)
3 7.67 8.04 (4.60)
f 14.88 16.58 (10.25)
| 16.14 17.85 (9.58)
i (.09) (.17) 47.06
| 5.0x 14.1x (64.54)
: 42.03% 38.29 (9.77)
| 105.70 77.46 36.46
|
;
| Tanglble Range of Stock
Basic  Diluted ! Cash Bdok Price
Earnings Earnings Dividend Va!_ue High Low
|
$.199 - .197 i 150 2'99 13.87 11.20
200 199 ¢ 150 3']12 13.25 10.73
210 208 | .150 307 13.66 1215
179 178 ¢+ 160 305 13.47 1140
| ||
165 164 | 160 296 13.00 11.88
.166 165 | .160 286 1230 10.50
149 149 - 160 3.03 11.25 10.40
125 J25 ' 160 319 11.48 10.59
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Trustco Continues to Expand... recent Openings

NEW YORK ¢« VERMONT o NEW JERSEY « MASSACHUSETTS

* AIRMONT
Rockland County

* CHATHAM

Columbia County

* MAMARONECK
Westchester County

* MONROE
Orange County

* NEW CITY
Rockland County

®* NORTHERN
PINES ROAD
Saratoga County

® PITTSFIELD, MA
Berkshire County

® APOLLO BEACH
Hillsborough County

® CURRY FORD
ROAD
Orange County

* LEESBURG
Lake County

* ORANGE CITY

Volusia County

* RINEHART ROAD
Seminale County

* N, CLERMONT
Lake County

® S. CLERMONT
Lake County
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TrustCo Mission Statement: !

TrustCo will be the low cost provider of high quality services to our customers in the

communities' we serve and return to our owners an above average return on their investment.
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President’s Message

Dear Shareholder:

We are pleased to report 2006 was a year of challenges and growth for our Bank. We
posted increases in deposits, loans and new branch offices. As expected net income was
down last year primarily due to the yield curve and the resulting pressure of our margins.

We continued our branch office expansion during 2006, opening a total of 12 new
offices. In Florida, we currently have 18 offices with additional branches pending. Our
downstate New York region also has shown impressive growth over the past several years.
We currently have thirteen branch offices with additional branches pending. In 2006 we
opened an office in Pittsfield, MA, and have plans to open a few additional in the
Berkshires. This is our first office in Massachusetts, which represents an extension
of our existing territory and not a major move eastward {(much like Bennington, VT and
Ramsey, NJ).

The expansion of our branch network has resulted in the continued growth of our loan
and deposit base. As of December 31, 2006, loans grew by an impressive $291.8 million or
19.84% compared to December 31, 2005. This is the second straight year loans have
shown double digit increases. Deposits also saw strong growth, up $236.9 million or 9.24%
compared to year-end 2005.

TrustCo has proudly received national recognition throughout the years; however, the
recognition we received in 2006 was especially rewarding. SNL Financial, a leading
financial service firm, listed the top 100 Savings Banks in the Country based on various
performance measures. Trustco was ranked number one. It'is gratifying that Trustco
continues to be recognized as one of the best performing banks in the United States.

TrustCo’s efficiency ratio of 42.03% continues to stand at industry leading levels. This
ratio is the best indicator of expense controls at a banking company. Our continued low
level is especially impressive since it has been maintained while the Company has
undergone such significant growth in our branch network. Cost control has always been a
hallmark of TrustCo’s success.

While we have seen excellent growth in our loan portfolio, we continue to be mindful of
loan quality. As of year-end 2008, TrustCo had just $7.1 million in nonperforming loans,
which is a mere 0.4% of our loan portfolio. As of year-end 2006, our loan loss reserve was
$35.6 million or 5x nonperforming loans.

TrustCo’s most important ratio, return on average equity (ROE), was 18.71% for 2006,
desplte a dlfhcu{t banking environment. We are committed to insuring that our ROE
compares favorably with any peer group, and | am confident that our current 18.71% ratio

;ranks well compared to our banklng peers.
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- .. President’s Message (continued)

Qur|Trust Department, which currently manages over $300 m||l|on in assets, continues
to move forward. With their “personai hands-on approach” to money, estate and trust
manaqement and their new Gallery Accounts, which cater to individual investors and IRA's,
2007 should be a great year for the Trust area. i

Alsciv dunng 2006 we adopted new required accounting standards that had the affect of
mcreasrng our capital by $13.9 miflion. These standards address the issues that many
compames face with respect to their employee benefit plans andlrecordlng pnor period
|mmater|al items. At TrustCo our employee benefit plans are fully| funded and these new
standards actually resulted in an increase to our capital. Also, we had an increase to our
caprtal as a result of recording these prior period items.

Shareholders have inquired about our plans relating to dividends. We understand the
|mportance of dividends to our shareholders. The dividend level i |s reviewed on an annual
basis, it continues to be our belief that excess capital should be returned to 0urH
shareholders We are mindful of our mission statement to give our owners an above
averaqe return on your investment. We also believe that it is prudent to retain enough
capital to support our growth and to remain well capitalized.

We are very enthusiastic about TrustCo's future. Our superior Iproclucts efﬂcrent delivery
system and continued expansion of our branch network give us a great platform for future
growth and success. On behalf of the Board of Directors and employees of our Bank I
would llike to thank our shareholders for your continued support of our Company.

Sincerely,

2L

Robert J. McCormick
President & Chief Executive Officer
TrustCo Bank Cor_p NY
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition

and Results of Operations

The financial review which follows will focus on the
factors affecting the financial condition and results of

operations of TrustCo Bank Corp NY (the “Company”,

“TrustCe” or the “Bank™}, during 2006 and, in
summary form, the two preceding years. Net interest
income and net interest margin are presented in this
discussion on a taxable equivalent basis. Balances
discussed are daily averages unless otherwise
described. The consolidated financial statements
and related notes and the quarterly reports to
shareholders for 2006 should be read in conjunction
with this review. Certain amounts in years prior to
2006 have been reclassified to conform with the
2006 presentation.

Overview

TrustCo recorded net income of $45.3 million or
$0.603 of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended December 31, 2006, compared to $59.0
million or $0.782 of diluted eamnings per share for
the year ended December 31, 2005. This represents
a decrease of 23.2% in net income between 2005
and 2006.

During 2006, the following had a significant effect
on net income:

» a decrease of $6.6 million in taxable equivalent
net interest income compared to 2005, because an
increase in the average balance of interest earning
assets of $133.0 million was offset by an increase in
interest bearing liabilities and a decrease of 40 basis
points (“bp”) in the net interest margin,

* a reduction in the credit provision for loan losses
from $6.3 million in 2005 to a $3.6 million credit in
20086,

* the recognition of net securities gains of $6.0
million in 2005 compared to net securities losses of
$596 thousand recorded in 2006,

* a reduction in total noninterest income
(excluding the impact of net securities transactions)
of $3.8 million resulting primarily from c=rta|n
transactions in 2005 related to the sale of the credit
card portfolio, the sale of the Canajohane Branch
and the sale of the former operations center which
did not recur, and

« an increase of $2.8 million in total noninterest
expense from $46.2 million in 2005 to $49.1 million
in 2006.

TrustCo has performed well with respact to a
number of key performance ratios during 2006 and
2005, including:

« return on average equity of 18.71% for 2006 and
26.07% for 2005,

« return on average assets of 1.52% for 2006 and
2.07% for 2005, and

« an efficiency ratio of 42.03% for 2005 and
38.29% for 2005.

During 2006, TrustCo’s results were negatively
affected by the continued impact of the inverted yield
curve and its impact on deposit and loan pricing. An
inverted yield curve exists when market interest
rates are higher for short term funds thcm for longer
term funds. As an example, at year end 2006 the
overnight rate paid between banks of the highest

MIX OF AVERAGE EARNING ASSETS

(dollars in thousands)

2006 2005 Components of
VS. VS. Total Earning Assels -
2004 - 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004

2006 2005
Loans, net ..... e $1,611,355 1,336,899
Securities available for sale:
U.S. Treasuries and agencies . . 926 1,059
Government sponsored
enterprises .............. 783,485 667,967
States and political subdivisions . . 127,173 127,704

Mortgage-backed securities and

collateralized rnortgage obllgatlons 184,721 210,720
Other .....! D 12,326 16,734

1,176,856 274,456 160,043 55.6% 48.3 43.1

634 (133) 425 — — —
713,969 115518  (46,002) 27.0 242 262
168,723 (531) (41,019) 4.4 4.6 6.2
149,298  (25,999) 61,422 6.4 7.6 5.5
25,221 (4,408)  (8,487) 04 0.6 0.9

Total securities-available ~. .

forsale ©............... .. 1,108,631 1,024,184

1,057,845 84,447 (33,661) 38.2 37.0 38.8

Federal funds sold and other .

r

short-term investments . z#

¥ 180,267 408,131

494 579 (225,864} (88,448) 6.2 14.7 18.1

- . e

Total earninghasse@s...l.;,'.’ $2,900,253 2,767,214

2,729,280 133,039 37,934 100.0% 100.0 1000

~ 4

The average balances of securities available for sale are presented using amortized cost for these securities.




quality rating (the federal fund rate) was 5.25% while
the 10 year Uniled States Treasury rate was 4.70%.
This has a negdtlve impact on banks because most
of the deposit products offered to customers are
priced based upon the short term rates (primarily the
federal funds rate or a comparable short term rate)
whereas the Iocln products are priced utilizing the
longer term treasury {or other Iong term high quality
investments). This can be seen in both the net
interest incomeldeorease as well as the affect on

net interest margin.

During 2006 [Trustco also opened 12 new
branches. These branches were primarily located in
Florida and downstate New York.

Also at year end 2006 TrustCo adopted new
accounting requurements as stipulated in SEC Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 108. SAB No. 108 changes
the method of quantlfylng prior year misstatements.
In accordance W|th the transition provisions of SAB
No. 108, the Company recorded a cumulative effect
adjustment to |t" January 1, 2006 undivided profits,
net of tax, whlch had the impact of increasing capital
by $9.6 million and decreasing return on average
equity by approxlmatety 1% for 2006. See section
“Recently Adopted Accounting Changes” for more
information.

% TRUSTCO q
Bank Corp NY

Management’s Discussion and Anz;llysis (continued)

In addition, the Company adopted new accounting
standards with respect to penS|on and post
retirement benefit plans As a result of this change
TrustCo recorded an increase mtcapltal of $7.3
million. See the section "Recently Adopted
Accounting Changes for more details.

TrustCo’s operations focus on providing high
quality service to the communities served by its
branch-banking network. The fmancual results for
the Company are influenced by economlc events
that affect those communities, as well as national
economic trends; primarily intere"st rates, affecting
the entire banking industry.

TrustCo continues to open new branch locations.
During 2006 a net increase of eleven new branches
were added to the franchise. The new branch
locations continue the plan establlshed several years
agoto expand the franchise to areas experiencing
economic growth In 2007, this strategy will lead to
the opening of seéven to ten new branches.
Management believes that expandlng into central
Florida and the downstate reglon of New York has
been a success. The new branches have the same
products and features found at other TrustCo
locations. With a combination of competltlve rates,
excellent serwceiand convenient|locations,

I

LOAN PORT:FOLIO
{dollars in thousands)

*t

As of December 31, |
2006 2005 i 2004

Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
Commercial......0................ $ 247,622 14.0% $202,570 v 13.8% $193,188 15.6%
Real estate - construction. ........... 25,534 14 22,123 Y18 120,148 16
Real estate - mortgage. . ... ......... 1,240,312 70.4 1,047,994 | 71.2 822,103 66.3
Home equity lines of credit. . ... ... ... 242,555 13.8 192,291 131 191,242 15.4
Installment loans. .| ................ 6,491 0.4 5,741 | 04 13,384 1.1
Totalfoans. ...... L. ... .. 1,762,514 100.0% 1,470,719 : 100.0% 1,2;40.065 100.0%
Less: Allowance for{loan losses. ... .... 35,616 45,377 i |49,384
Netloans (1).....1......... ... ...... $1,726,898 $1,425,342 ' $1,190,681

Average Balances n
2006 2005 2004 ‘ 2003 i 2002
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Perdbnt Amount Percent

Commercial ....5 .......... $ 221,527 13.8% $ 192,378 144% $ 189,179 161% § 199729 157% $198566 13.1%
Real estate - constructlon ..... 21,784 1.4 18,893 1.4 12,430 1.1, 6,684 0.5 9752 06
Real estate - mortgdge ....... 1,144,378 1.0 922,875 69.0 780,777 65.3| 899415 705 1,156,779 76.5
Home equity lines of credit . 218,297 13.5 192,819 144 181,948 155 155,185 122 129,847 8.6
Installmentloans |.......... 5,369 0.3 9934 08 12,522 1.0i 14,018 11 17,504 1.2
Totalloans .....).......... 1,611,355 100.0% 1,336,899 100.0% 1,176,856 100.0% 1,275,023 100.0% 1,512,448 100.0%
Less: Allpowance for loan losses . 35,538 47,653 49,299 ! 51,311 li 56,525
Net loans (1) ....l .......... $1,575,817 $1,289,246 $1.127.557 ' $1223712 | $1,455,923

(1) Presented net of deferred direct loan origination fees and costs.

@




TRUSTCO
Bank Corp NY

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (ontinueq)

Taxable Equivalent
R Net Interest Income (dollars in millions)
125

$105.0 $107.9 $101.4

100

75

50

25

2004 2005 2006

management believes that the new branches will
attract deposit and loan customers and be a
welcome addition to these communities.

Overali, 2006 was marked by growth in each of the
key drivers of performance. Deposits ended 2006 at
$2.80 billion, an increase from the prior year of
$236.9 million or 9.2%, and the loan portfolio grew to
a total of $1.76 billion, an increase of $291.8 million
over the 2005 year end balance. The increase in
deposits and loans reflect the success the Company
has had in attracting new customers to the Bank,
both in new branch locations as weli as overall.
Management believes that TrustCo's success is
predicated on providing core banking services to a
wider number of customers.

Asset/Liability Management

In managing its balance sheet, TrustCo utilizes
funding and capital sources within sound credit,
investment, interest rate, and liquidity risk guidelines
established by management and approved by the
Board of Directors. Loans and securities (including
federal funds sold) are the Company’s primary .
earning assets. Average interest earning assets
were 97.5% and 97.3% of average total assets for
2006 and 2005, respectively.

TrustCo, through its management of liabilities,
attempts to provide stable and flexible sources of
funding within established liquidity and interest
rate risk guidelines. This is accomplished through
core deposit banking products offered within the
markets served by the Company. TrustCo does
not actively seek to attract out-of-area deposits or
so-called “hot money”; rather the Company
focuses on core relationships with both depositors
and borrowers.

TrustCo'’s objectives in managing its balance
sheet are to limit the sensitivity of net interest income
to actual or potential changes in interest rates and to
enhance profitability through strategies that shouild
provide sufficient reward for understood and
controlled risk. The Company is deliberate in its
eftort to maintain adequate liquidity under prevailing

and projected economic conditions and to maintain
an efficient and appropriate mix of coere deposit
relationships.

The Company relies on traditional banking
investment instruments and its large base of core
deposits to help in asset/liability management.

Interest Rates

TrustCo competes with other financial service
providers based upon many factors including quality
of service, convenience of operations, and rates paid
on deposits and charged on loans. The:absolute
level of interest rates, changes in rates, and
customers’ expectations with respect to the direction
of interest rates have a significant impact on the
volume of loan and deposit originations in any
particular year.

Interest rates have a significant impact on the
operations and financial results of all financial
services companies. One of the most important
interest rates used to control national economic
policy is the “federal funds” rate. This is the interest
rate utilized within the banking system for overnight
borrowings for institutions with the highest credit
rating. The federal funds rate increased by 100 basis
points during 2006 from 4.25% at the b»nglnnlng of
the year to 5.25% by year end. For-2005 the federal
funds rate began the year at 2.25% and ended 2005
at 4.25%, an increase of 200 basis points. Therefore
the federal funds rate has increased by a total of 300
basis points between January 1, 2005 and December
31, 2006. Traditionally interest rates on bank deposit
accounts are heavily influenced by the federal funds
rate. Consequently the cost of deposits during this
time pericd also increased.

During this same time period the 10 year treasury
bond rate did not change consistent with the
increased federal funds rate. The 10 year treasury
was 4.36% at the beginning of 2006 and ended the
year at 4.70%. Likewise in 2005 the 10 year treasury
hegan the year at 4.22% and ended 2005 at 4.36%.
Therefore for the period from January 1, 2005 to
December 31, 2006 the 10 year treasury increased
by 48 basis points as compared to the 300 basis
points increase in the federal funds rate. The rate on
the 10 year treasury bond and other long-term
interest rates has a significant influence on the rates
tor new residential real estate loans. These changes
in interest rates have an effect on the Company
relative to the interest income on loans, securities
and federal funds sold and other short term
instruments as well as on interest expense on
deposits and borrowings. Residential real estate
loans and Ionger -term investments are most affected
by the changes in longer term market interest rates
such as the 10 year treasury. The federal funds sold
portfolio and other short term investments are
affected primarily by changes in the federal funds
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~Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

MATURITIES AND SENSITIVITIES OF LOANS TO CHANGES IN lNTERESTi:RATES

{dollars in thousands)

Commercial. . ..

Predeterminedrates. . .......oov i i i
Floatingrates ..} .......... .. ...

Total .. e e

December 31, 2006 |

After 1 Year :;
In 1 Year But Within After
or Less 5 Years 5 Years Total
$71,336 85,841 90,445 247,622
25,534 C— i — 25,534
96,870 85,841 90,445 273,156
29,789 85,841 90,445 206,075
67,081 C— I — 67,081
$96,870 85,841 90,445 273,156

target rate. Deposit interest rates are most affected
by short term market interest rates. Also, changes in
interest rates have an effect on the recorded balance
of securities avarlable for sale portfolio, which is
recorded at falr, market value. Generally, as interest
rates increase the fair market value of the securities
available for sale portfolic will decrease. Interest
rates on new resrdentral real estate loan originations
are also mfluenced by the rates established by
secondary market participants such as Freddie Mac
and Fannie Mae Because TrustCo is a portfolio
lender and does not sell loans into the secondary
market, the Company establishes rates that
management determmes are appropriate in light of
the long-term nature of residential real estate loans
while remalnlnq competitive with the secondary
market rates.

The net effect of these interest rate changes is that
the yields earned on short term investments have
increased whrle longer term investment yields have
remained relatively flat, and deposit costs have risen.

Earning Assets

Average earnrng assets during 2006 were $2.90
billion, which was an increase of $133.0 million from
the prior year. This increase was primarily the result of
growth in the average balance of loans by $274.5
million, an $84.5 million increase in securities
available for sate and a decrease of $225.9 million of
federal funds sold and other short term investments
between 2005 and 2006. The increase in the loan
portfolic is primarily the result of the $224.4 million
increase in realjestate loans. This increase in real
estate loans is a result of aggressive marketing of this
product throughout the TrustCo branch network, an
effective marketlng campaign and competitive rates
and closing costs

Total average assets were $2.97 billion for 2006
and $2.84 bltlron for 2005.

The table “Mix of Average Earning Assets” shows

how the mix of the earning assets has changed over
the last three years. While the growth in earning
assets is critical to improved profitability, changes in
the mix also have a significant |mpact on income
levels, as discussed below.

Loans f

Average loans increased $274 5 million during
2006. Interest income on the Ioan portfolio also
increased to $104.4 million in 2006 from $86.6
million in 2005. The average yleld remained
unchanged at 6. 48% in 2006 and 2005.

Historically, TrustCo has drstmgurshed itself as a
principal orrglnator of resrdentral real estate loans.
Through marketing, pricing and a customer-friendly
service delivery r network, TrustCo has attempted to
distinguish itself from other mortgage tenders. The
unlqueness of the loan products, ,was highlighted by
TrustCo in an effort to dlfferentrate them from those
of other lenders. |Specrf|cally, Iow closing costs, no
escrow or private mortgage msurance and quick loan
approvals were |dent|f|ed and marketed The fact
that the Company holds mortgages in its loan
portfolio rather than selling theminto secondary
markets was also highlighted. The average balance
of residential real estate loans was $930.7 million in
2005 and $1.15 billion in 2006. Income on real
estate loans increased to $71.6 m||t|on in 2006 from
$58.9 million in 2005. The yield on the portfolio
decreased from 6.33% for 2005: to 6.21% in 2006
due to changes in retail rates in the marketplace.
Residential real estate loans at December 31, 2006
were $1.25 billion compared to $1.06 billion at year
end 2005, an increase of $192. 5 million.

The majority of TrustCo's reahestate loans are
secured by properties within the Bank s market area.
During 2006, management contmued its established
practice of retaining all new Ioan ,originations in the
Bank's portfolio rather than selllng them in the
secondary market f

t

f
!
'




W TRUSTCO
Bank Corp NY

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Average comrnercial loans of $234.7 million in
2006 increased by $31.3 million from $203.4 million
in 2005. The average yield on the commercial loan
portfolio increased to 7.55% for 2006 from 7.26% in
2005. This resulted in income on commercial loans
of $17.7 million in 2006 and $14.8 million in 2005.

TrustCo strives to maintain strong asset quality in
all segments of its loan portfolic, especially
commercial loans. Competition for commercial loans
continues to be very intense in the Bank’s market
region. The Bank competes with large money center
and regional banks as well as with smaller locally
based banks and thrifts. Over the last several years,
competition for commercial loans has intensified as
smaller banks and thrifts have tried to develop
commercial loan portfolios.

TrustCo’s commercial lending activities are
focused on balancing the Company's commitment to
meeting the credit needs of businesses in its market
area with the necessity of managing its credit risk. In
accordance with these goals, the Company has con-
sistently emphasized the origination of loans within
its market area. The portfolio contains no foreign
loans, nor does it contain any significant concen-
trations of credit to any single borrower or industry.
The commercial loan portfolio reflects the diversity of
businesses found in the Capital Region’s economy.
Light manufacturing, retail, service, and real estate
related business are a few examples of the types of
businesses located in the Company's market area.

TrustCo has a leadership position in the home
equity credit line product in its market area. TrustCo
was one of the first financial institutions in the Capital
Region to aggressively market and originate this
product, and management believes, has developed
significant expertise with respect to its risks and
rewards. During 2006, the average balance of home
equity credit lines was $218.3 million, an increase
from $192.8 million in 2005. The home equity credit
line product has developed into a significant
business line for most financial services companies.
Trustco Bank competes with both regional and
national concerns for these lines of credit and faces
stiff competition with respect to interest rates, closing
costs, and customer service for these loans. TrustCo
continuously reviews changes made by competitors
with respect to the home equity credit line product
and adjusts its offerings to remain competitive. The
average yield increased to 6.59% for 2006 from
6.11% in 2005. This resulted in interest income on
home equity credit lines of $14.4 million in 2006,
compared to $11.8 million in 2005,

The average balance of installment loans, net,
decreased to $5.4 million in 2006 from $9.9 million in
2005. The yield on instaliment loans increased to
14.25% in 2006 from 12.268% in 2005, resulting in
interest income of $765 thousand.

Securities available for sale: The portfolio of
ecurities available for sale is designed to provide a

stable source of interest income and liguidity. The
portfolio is also managed by the Company to take
advantage of changes in interest rates. The
securities available for sale portfolio is rnanaged
under a policy detailing the types, duration, and
interest rates acceptable in the portfolio,

The designation of “available for sale” is made at
the time of purchase, based upon managements
intent to hold the securities for an mdefmlte period of
time. The Company currently has no |nt<=nt to sell
securities with temporary impairment. However,
these securities are available for sale in response
to changes in market interest rates, related changes
in prepayment risk, needs for liquidity, or changes
in the availability of and yield on alternative
investments.

At December 31, 2005, securities available for
sale amounted to $1.08 billion, compared to $1.05
billion at year end 2006. For 2006, the average
balance of securities available for sale \.']'vas $1.11
billion with an average vield of 5.32%, compared to
an average balance in 2005 of $1.02 billicn with an
average yield of 5.36%. The taxable equivalent
income earned on the securities portfollo in 2005
was $54.9 million, compared to $59.0 million eamed
in 2006.

During 2005, TrustCo recognized approximately
$6.0 million of net gains from securities transactions,
compared to net losses from securities fransactions
of $596 thousand in 2006.

TrustCo has not invested in any exotic investment
products such as interest rate swaps, forward
placement contracts, or other instruments commonly
referred to as derivatives. By actively managing a
portfolio of high quality securities, TrustCo can meet
the objectives of asset/liability management and

liquidity, while at the same time producing a

reasonably predictable earnings stream.

Securities available for sale are recorded at their
fair value, with any unrealized gains or losses, net of
taxes, recognized as a component of shareholders
equity. Average balances of securities avallable for
sale are stated at amortized cost. At De«,ember 31,
2006 and 2005, the market value of Trul tCo’s
portfalio of securities available for sale carried net
unrealized losses of approximately $17.0 million
and $10.1 million, respectively.

Maturity and call dates of securities: Many of
the securities in the investment portfolio: have a call
date in addition to the stated maturity dzte. Call
dates allow the issuer to redeem the bonds prior to
maturlty at specified dates and at predetermmed
prices. Normally, securities are redeemed at the call
date when the issuer can reissue the security at a
lower interest rate. Therefore, for cash flow, liquidity
and interest rate management purposes, it is
important to monitor both maturity dates and call
dates. The table below details the portfalio of
securities available for sale by both maturity date




and call date as of December 31, 2006. Mortgage-
backed secuntles are reported using an estimate of
average life; equity securities are excluded.

The table, “Securities Portfolio Maturity
Distribution and Yield,” distributes the securities
available for sale portfollo as of December 31, 2006,
based on the flnal maturity of the securities.
Mortgage- backed securities are stated using
estimated average life, and equity securities are
excluded. Actual maturities may differ from
contractual maturttles because of securities’
prepayments and the right of centain issuers to call
or prepay their obllgatlons without penalty.

Federal funds sold and other short-term
investments: Durlng 2006, the average balance of
federal funds sold and other short-term investments
was $180.3 million, a decrease from $406.1 million
in 2005. The average rate eamed on these assets
was 2.96% in 2005 and 4.94% in 2006. TrustCo
utilizes this category of earning assets as a means of
maintaining strong liquidity as interest rates change.
During 2006, the target federal funds rate set by
the Federal Open Market Committee (FOMC)
changed sngmflcantly as described previously. The
federal funds sold and other short-term investments
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portfolio is S|gn|f|cantly affected by changes in the
target federal funds rate as are wrtually all interest
sensitive instruments.

The year end balance of federal funds sold and
other short term mvestments was $243.4 million for
2006 compared to $257.2 rn|I1|on for year end 2005.
Management ant|C|pates evaluatlng the overall level
of the federal funds sold and other short term
investments portfolio for 2007 and will make
appropriate adjustments based upon market
opportunities and interest rates. ||

Funding Sources

TrustCo utrllzes various traditional sources of funds
to support its asset portfolio. The table, “Mix of
Average Sources of Funding,” presents the various
categories of funds used and the corresponding
average ba!ances for each of the last three years.

Deposits: Average total deposrts {(including time
deposits greater than $100 thousand) were $2.63
billion in 20086, compared to $2. 31 billion in 2003, an
increase of $122 4 million. Increases were noted
primarily in the demand deposits, time deposits and
money market account categories. The average
balance of interest bearing chechung accounts

SECURITIES'AVA[LABLE FOR SALE

{dollars in thousands)

|
|
As of December 31, ‘

2006 2005 i 2004

Amortized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized Fair

Cost Value Cost Value || Cost Value

U.8. Treasuries|and agencies ............ $ 999 999 499 498 ’ 500 500

Government sponsored enterprises ......... 751,539 733,549 756,525 743,265 521,078 517,061

States and pol|t|r'al subdivisions ... ......... 129,633 132,880 115,010 118,950 147,988 154,939
Morigage- backed securities and collateralized i

mortgage obllgatlons .................. 170,450 167,896. 202,007 200,963 201,579 201,623

Other ...... .0 ... ..o 680 672 685 681 i 685 685

Total debt seci-urities available forsale ..... 1,053,301 1,035,996 1,074,726 1,064,357 871,830 874,808

Equity securities. . ............. ... ....... 11,933 12,274 19,418 19,718 16,741 21,181

Total securities available forsale ......... $1,065,234 1,048,270 1,094,144 1,084,076 Il 888,571 895,989

|
SECURITIES|PORTFOLIO MATURITY AND CALL DATE DISTRIBUTION

Debt securities available for sale:

(doliars in thousarids)

WithinTyear ... ... ... ... i,
1toSyears ... .0 o e
Stot10years ... 0. .. .. .
After 10 years .. ! ....................................

Total debt securities availableforsale ..................

'

As of December 31,2006

Based on | | Based on

Final Maturity| | Call Date
Amortized I Fair Amortized Fair
Cosl Value I Cost Value
....$ 66,648 66,445 754,018 736,097
.... 350,083 345,905 234,967 234,105
.... 70,748 69,754 59,827 61,168
.... 565822 553,892 ' 4,489 4,626
.... $1,053,301 1,035,996 1,053,301 1,035,996

f
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decreased by $30.8 million to $287.4 million in 20086. investment opportunities such as stocks or bonds.
Savings account balances decreased from $783.4 TrustCo, with its expanding branch network, is well
million in 2005 to $702.8 million in 2006. Time positioned to attract these new deposits.
deposits increased on average by $117.2 million, The overall cost of interest bearing deposits was
money market accounts increased by an average of 1.92% in 2005 compared 1o 2.82% in 2006. The
$106.9 million and demand deposits increased by increase in the average balance of interest bearing
$9.7 million during 2006 compared to 2005. deposits, coupled with a 90 basis point increase in
The increase in deposits reflects the impact of new the average cost, resulted in an mcrease of approxi-
branches opened over the last several years, and mately $23.6 million in interest expense to $67.2
the continuing focus at TrustCo on providing core million in 2006.
banking services better, faster and cheaper than its The Company strives to maintain competitive
competitors. Management believes that another rates on deposit accounts and to attract customers
contributing factor to the increase in deposits is the through a combination of competitive mterest rates,
overall increase in the rates paid on deposit accounts. quality customer service, and conven:ent banking
As noted previously the largest growth in deposits is locations. In this fashion, management |3e||eves
in the categories of money market and time deposits TrustCo is able to attract deposit customers looking
which carry the highest cost in terms of interest rates fora Iong-term banking relationship, and to cross sell
while at the same time the Company experienced a banking services utilizing the deposit account
deposit outflow in savings accounts which is a relationship as the starting point.

relatively low cost source of deposits. The increasing
rates are attracting customers away from other

SECURITIES PORTFOLIO MATURITY DISTRIBUTION ANDYIELD
Debt securities available for sale:

(dollars in thousands) As of December 31, 2006
Maturing:
After 1 After 5
Within But Within But Within After
1 Year 5 Years 10 Years 10 Years Total
U.S. Treasuries and agencies
Amortizedcost .................. $ 999 —_ —_ —_ 999
Fairvalue ...................... 999 — — — 999
Weighted average vyield ........... 4.59% — — — 4.59
Government sponsored enterprises .
Amortizedcost . ......... ... ... $59,993 164,158 54,900 472,488 751,539
Fairvalue ...................... 59,811 162,468 54,157 457,113 . 733,549
Weighted average yield ........... 4.66% 4.93 5.34 5.42 5.24
States and political subdivisions
Amortizedcost . ........ .. ... .. $ 275 35,484 1,458 92,416 129,633
Fairvalue ...................... 275 35,253 1,473 95,879 132,880
Weighted average yield ........... 4.70% 3.42 5.20 4.85 4.46

Mortgage-backed securities and
collateralized mortgage obligations

Amortizedcost .................. $ 5,351 149,791 14,390 918 170,450
Fairvalue ...................... 5,330 147,542 14,124 900 167,896
Weighted average yield ........... 5.02% 4.70 4.79 6.87 4.73
Other : ‘ .
Amortizedcost .................. $ 30 650 — — 680
Fairvalue ...................... 30 642 — — 672
Weighted average yield ........... 3.00% 4.60 — — 4.84
Total debt securities available for sale
Amortizedcost .................. $ 66,648 350,083 70,748 565,822 1,053,301
Fairvalue ...................... 66,445 345,905 69,754 553,892 1,035,996
Weighted averageyield ........... 4.69% 4.68 5.23 5.33 5.05

Weighted average yields have not been adjusted for any tax-equivalent factor. Government sponsored enterprises maturing after 10 years have final maturities of
iss than 15 years. States and political subdivisions maturing after 10 years have finai maturities of less than 20 years.
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AVERAGE BAELANCES, YIELDS AND NET INTEREST MARGINS|

{dollars in thousands) 2006 2005 | 2004

Interest Interest ! Interest
Average Income/ Average Average Income/ Average Average Income/ Average
Balance Expense  Rate Balance Expense  Rate Balance Expense  Rate

Assets ! I
Loans, net .....L.... . ... .. ... ... $1,611,355 104,437 6.48% 12336899 86669  648% 1,176,856 75232  6.39%
Securitigs avai!ablel for sale: “
U.S. Treasuries and agencies ......... 926 42 4.56 1,059 28 2.64 634 11 1.74
Government sponsored enterprises . . . . 783,485 40816 521 667,967 34478 516 713,969 39,785 5.57
States and political subdivisions .. ... .. 127,173 8,766  6.89 127,704 9,658 7.56 168,723 13,302 7.88
Mortgage-backed securities and | I
collateralized mortgage obligations . . 184,721 8,661 4.69 210,720 9,738 462 149,298 7,032 47
Other ........L..... oot 12,326 676 5.48 16,734 1,025  6.12 25221 1,744 692
Total securities cvailable forsale .. ... .. 1,108,631 58,961 5.32 1,024,184 54927 536 1,057,845 61,874 5.85
Federal funds sold and other short-term | I
investments .. ........ ...l 180,267 8,912 4.94 406,131 12,009 2.96 494579 6,675 1.3
Total interest eatning assets .......... 2,900,253 172,310 5.94% 2,767,214 153,605  5.55% 2,729,280 143,781 5.27%
Allowance for loan losses ............. {35,538) (47,653} I (4?),299)
Cash and noninterist earing assets .. ... 109,237 125413 | 148,214
Totalassets .. ...l $2,973,952 2,844,974 | 2,828,195

Liabilities and shareliolders’ equity |
Interest bearing deposits: |
Interest bearinglchecking accounts .... $ 287,406 1,303 0.45% 318,167 1376 043% 328,804 1,586 0.48%

Savings ...... T 702,790 10,800 1.54 783410 6,769 Q.86 B09438 7968 098
Time deposits aiwd money markets . .. .. 1,393,081 55,125 3.96 1,169,018 35481 304 1,123,474 28,223 2.51
Total interest be?ring deposits ........ 2,383,277 67,228 2.82 2270595 43626 192 2261716 37777  1.67
Short-term borrowings . .............. 95239 3,708 3.89 83381 2026 243 100,855 972 096
Long-term debt .| ... ... ... 72 4 522 o9 |5 520 | 151 8 540
Total interest bearing liabilities ... ... .. 2,478,588 70,980 2.86% 2,354,075 45657  1.94% 2,362,722 38,757  1.64%
Demand deposits . . .................. 245,061 235,372 ! 212,463
Other liabilities . /.................... 20,044 28,956 | 29,291
Sharehotders’ equity ..... U 230,259 226,571 | 223,719
Total liabitities and sharehoiders’ equity . $2,973,952 : 2,844 974 | 2,828,195
Net interestincome | .................. 101,370 107,948 | 105004
Taxable equivalent adjustment .. ......... 3,103 3,431 I 4,995
Net interestincome! ............ ... ... $ 98,267 $104,517 I $100,029
Net interest spread I ................... 3.08% ! 361% | 3.63%
Net interest margin (net interest income .
to total interest earning assets) .......... 3.50 3.90 “ 3.85
1

]

Portions of income earned on certain commercial loans, U.S. Government obligations, obligations pf states and political subdivisions, and
equity securities are: exempt from federal and/or state taxation. Appropriate adjustments have been made to reflect lhe::equivalent amount of
taxable income that would have been necessary to generate an equal amount of after tax income. Federal and New York State tax rates used
to calculate income an a tax equivalent basis were 35.0% and 7.5% tor 2006, 2005, and 2004. The average balances of securities available for
sale were calculated using amortized costs for these securities. Included in the average balance of shareholders’ equity is $(12.0) million,

$0.3 million, and $1‘! .5 million in 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively, net of unrealized (depreciatio:n) appreciation, net‘lpi 1ax, in the available
for sale secutities portfolio. The gross amounts of the net unrealized (depreciation) appreciation has been included in cash and noninterest
earning assets. Nonaccrual loans are included in average loans.
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MATURITY OF TIME DEPOSITS
OVER $100 THOUSAND
(dollars in thousands) As of December 31, 2006

the view of management, but not excessive. This
philosophy has led to a dividend payout ratio of
105.7% of net income in 2006, 77.5% of net income
in 2005, and 78.8% for 2004. These are significant

Under3months ....................... $ 27,776

3te6months ... .. ..., 59,147 payouts to the Company’s shareholders and are
6to12months ......... PR 86,775 considered by management to be a prudent use of
Over12months ......... ... ... ... 126,115 excess capital. As to the likelihcod of future dividends,
Total . oo oo $ 299,813 it is currently anticipated that the philosophy stated

Other funding sources: The Company had $95.2
million of average short-term borrowings outstanding
during 2006 compared to $83.4 million in 2005. The
average cost of short-term borrowings was 3.89% in
2006 and 2.43% in 2005. This resulted in interest
expense of approximately $3.7 million in 2006. The
increase in the rate paid on these funds is a result of
the increase in the target federal funds rate during
2005 and 2006.

Capital Resources

Consistent with its long-term goal of operating a
sound and profitable financial organization, TrustCo
strives to maintain strong capital ratics and to qualify
as a well capitalized bank in accardance with federal
regulatory requirements. Historicatly, most of the
Company’s capital requirements have been provided
through retained earnings generated. New issues of
equity securities have not been required to support
the Company’s growth.

A basic element of TrustCo’s operating philosophy
is that the Company will not retain excess capital.
Capital generated by the Company that is in excess
of the levels considered by management to be
necessary for the safe and sound operation of the
Company has been distributed to the shareholders
in the form of cash dividends. Consequently, the
capital ratios that are maintained are adequate,.in.

above will continue.

TrustCo's Tier 1 capital was 14.88% of risk-adjusted
assets at December 31, 2006, and 16.58% of risk-
adjusted assets at December 31, 2005. Tier 1
capital to average assets at December 31, 2006 was
7.67%, as compared to 8.40% at year end 2005.

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, TrustCo and
Trustco Bank met their respective regulators’
definition of a well capitalized institution.

Risk Management

The responsibility for balance sheet risk
management oversight is the function of the Asset
Allocation Committee. This committee meets
monthly and includes the executive officers of the
Company as well as other department managers as
appropriate. The meetings include a review of
balance sheet structure, formulation of strategy in
light of anticipated economic conditions, and
comparison to established guidelines to control
exposures to various types of risk.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is managed through a network of loan
officer authorities, review committees, loan policies,
and oversight from the senior executives of the
Company. Management follows a policy of
continually identifying, analyzing, and evaluating the
credit risk inherent in the loan portfolio. As a result of

‘MIX OF AVERAGE SOURCES OF FUNDING
(dollars in thousands)

2006 2005
Vs, VS,

Components of
Total Funding

2006 2004 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004
Demand deposits ................. $ 245,061 235,372 212,463 9,688 22,909 9.0% 9.1 8.3
Retail deposits:
Savings . ........ ... 702,790 783,410 809,438 (80,620} (26,028) 25.8 303 314
Time deposits under $100 thousand . . 882,280 813,751 789,211 68,529 24,540 32.4 314 306
Interest bearing checking accounts . . 287,406 318,167 328,802 (30,761) (10,637) 10.6 123 128
Money market deposits .. ......... 260,751 153,838 157,418 106,913 (3,580) 9.5 5.9 6.1
Total retail deposits . ............. 2,133,227 2,069,166 2,084,869 64,061 (15,705) 78.3 79.9 80.9
Total core deposits .............. 2,378,288 2,304,538 2,297,334 73,750 7204 873 89.0 892
Time deposits over $100 thousand . . .. 250,050 201,429 176,845 48,621 24,584 9.2 7.8 6.9
Short-term borrowings . . ......... ... 95,239 83,381 100,855 11,858 (17,474) 35 3.2 3.9
Long-termdebt ................... 72 99 151 {(27) (52) —_ — —
Total purchased liabilities ......... 345,361 284,509 277,851 60,452 7,058 127 11.0 108
Total sources of funding .......... $2,723,649 2,589,447 2,575,185 134,202 14,262 - 100.0% 100.0 100.0
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AVERAGE DIJZPOSITS BY TYPE OF DEPOSITOR

(dollars in thousands}

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 | 2004 I 2003 2002
Individuals, partnerships and corporations ............ $2,609,596 2,485922 | 2,453,843 2318,424 2,150,986
U.S. Government|. ... 19 72 70 73 35
States and political subdivisions ............ ... ... 4,585 4,875 5,539 9,802 48,049
Other (certified and official checks, etc.) .............. 14,138 15,098 14,727 12,528 13,370
Total average deposits by type of depositor . . ........ $2,628,338 2,505,967 | 2,474,179 2/340,827 2,212,440

' ] .l
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management slongorng reviews of the loan portfolio, Nonperformmg Assets

loans are placed in nonaccrual status, either due to
the delinquent status of the principal and/or interest
payments, or based on a judgment by management
that, although payment of principal and/or interest is
current, such actlon is prudent. Thereatter, no
interest is taken into income unless received in cash
or until such t|rne as the borrower demonstrates a
sustained ability to make scheduled payments of
interest and principal.

anagement has also developed policies and
procedures to momtor the credit risk in relation to

Nonperforming assets include loans in nonaccrual
status, loans that have been treated as troubled debt
restructurings, Ioans past due three payments or
more and still accrunng interest, and foreclosed real
estate propertles

Nonperformmg assets at yearend 2006 and 2005
totaled $7.2 million and $3.2 million respectively.
Nonperforming Ioans asa percentage of the total
loan porifolio were 0.40% in 2006 and 0.22% in

2005.

included in nonpen‘ormmg loans at year end 2006

were $5.7 m|II|on of loans in nonaccrual status as
compared to $1.7 million at year end 2005. There
were $211 thousand of loans past due three.
payments or more and still accrurng interest at year
end 2006 and $35 thousand at year end 2005.
Restructured loans at year end 2006 were $1.2

the federal fun ds sold portfolio. TrustCo monitors
the credit ratmg and capital levels of the third party
banks that they sell federal funds to. Only banks
with the highest rating from the credit rating agency
selected are included in the list for federal funds
transactions. i

}
VOLUME AN[i! YIELD ANALYSIS
(dollars in thousands) 2006 vs. 2005 2005 vs, 2004
A Increase Due to Due to Increase Due to Due to
| (Decrease) Volume Rate {Decrease) Volume Rate
Interest income (TE): T I
Federal funds sold and other f .
short-term investments ........ (3,097) (8,707} 5,610 i 5334 {941} 6,275
Securities available for sale:
Taxable ....L ... ... ... ..., 4,926 4,552 374 (3,302) {153) (3,149}
Tax-exempt .. ........ . ....... (892) (40) (852) (3,665) {3,123) (522)
Total securities available | !
forsale ...L................ 4,034 4,512 (478) | (6,947) (?,276) (3,671}
Loans, Net .. ..h. v, 17,768 17,151 617 | 11,437 9,596 1,841
Total interest income ........... 18,705 12,956 5,749 | 9,824 15,379 4,445
Interest expense:
Interest bearing checking accounts . . (73) (141) 68 (210) (50) (160)
Savings ......L.... ... ool 4,031 (763) 4,794 {1,199) (249) (950)
Time deposits ’
and money markets ........... 19,644 7,206 12,438 7,258 1,376 5,882
Short-term borrowings ........... 1,682 322 1,360 1,054 (134) 1,188
Long-termdebt |................. 1 (1} — (3) {3) —
Total interest expense .. ........ 25,283 6,623 18,660 ! 6,900 | 940 5,960
Net interest income (TE) ........ ${6,578) 6,333 {12,911) | 2,924 l'4,438 {1,515)
Increases and decre.tses in |nterest income and interest expense due 1o both rate and volume have ! been allocated to trtte two categones |
of variances (volume!and rate) based on the percentage relationship of such variances to each other.
|




TRUSTCO
Bank CorpNY

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

million, compared to $1.5 million at year end 2005.
Adherence to sound underwriting standards,
vigorous loan collection efforts and timely charge-
offs have been cornerstones of the operating
philosophy of TrustCo.

Virtually all of the $7.1-million of nonperforming
loans at December 31, 2006 are residential real
estate or retail consumer loans. A significant portion
of the charge-offs for 2006 and 2005 occurred in the
residential real estate loan portfolio. During 20086,
gross charge-offs of this type of loan was $1.9
miliion (which represented 88% of total gross
charge-offs). In 2005, charge-offs for this type of
loan was $1.6 million.

Ongoing portfolio management is intended to
result in early identification and disengagement from
deteriorating credits. TrustCo has a diversified loan
portfolio that includes a significant balance of
residential mortgage loans to borrowers in the
Capital Region of New York and avoids concen-
trations to any one borrower or any single industry.

Management is aware of no other loans in the
Bank’s portfolio that pose significant risk of the
eventual non-collection of principal and interest. As
of December 31, 2006, there were no other loans
classified for regulatory purposes that management
reascnably expects will materially impact future
operating resulis, Yiquidity, or capital resources.
TrustCo has no advances to borrowers or projects
located outside the United States.

TrustCo has identified nonaccrual commercial and
commercial real estate loans, as well as all loans
restructured under a troubled debt restructuring, as
impaired loans.

At year end 2006 and 2005, there were $1.2 and
$1.5 million, respectively, of impaired loans. The
average balances of impaired lpans were $1.3 | |
million during 2006 and $1.9 million during 2005,
The Company recognized approximately $150
thousand of interest income on these loans in 2006
and $201 thousand in 2005.

At year end 2006 there were $92 thousand of
foreclosed real estate as compared to $23 thousand
in 2005.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan {osses is available to
absorb losses on loans that management
determines are uncoltectible. The balance of the
allowance is maintained at a level that is, in
management’s judgment, representative of the loan
portfolio’s inherent risk.

In deciding on the adequacy of the allowance for
loan losses, management reviews past due
information, historical charge-off (recovery) data,
and nonperforming loan activity. Also, there are a
number of other factors that are taken into
consideration, including;

= the magnitude, nature and trends of recent loan
charge-offs, and recoveries,

» the growth in the foan portfolic and the
implication that it has in relation to the economic
climate in the Bank's business territory, and

» the economic environment in the Upstate New
York territory {the Company’s largest gedgraphical
area) over the last several years.

Management continues to monitor these trends in
determining future provisions or credits for loan
losses in relation to loan charge offs, recoveries and
the level and trends of nonperforming loans.

The table, “Summary of Loan Loss Experience”,
includes an analysis of the changes to the allowance
for the past five years. Loans charged off in 2006
and 2005 were $2.1 million and $2.5 million,
respectively. Recoveries were $3.5 million in 2006
and $4.7 million in 2005. The Company recorded a
$3.6 million credit for loan losses in 2005 compared
to $6.3 million in 2005. The credit for loan losses
recorded in 2006 and 2005 was the result of the
significant net recoveries in those years-and the
lessening impact of prior year net charge off
percentages in relation to the allowance
methodology, parially offset by growth in the
loan portfolio.

At year end 2006 TrustCo implemented new
accounting reguirements as stipulated in SEC Siaff
Accounting Bulletin No. 108 which changed the
method of quantifying prior year misstatements. As a
result of the adoption of SAB No. 108, the Company
reduced the allowance for loan losses by $7.6 million
which represented an overaccrual from prior years,
The reduction in the allowance was recorded as of
the beginning of 2006 and prior periods were not
restated. See Recently Adopted Accounting.Changes.

Market Risk :
The Company’s principal exposure to market risk
is with respect to interest rate risk. Interest rate risk

"is the potential for economic loss due to future

interest rate changes. These economic losses can
be reflected as a loss of future net interest income
and/or a loss of current market value.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure

about Market Risk

TrustCo realizes income principally from the
difference or spread between the interest earned on
loans, investments and other interest-earning assets
and the interest paid on deposits and borrowings.
Loan volume and yield, as well as the volume of and
rates on investments, deposits and borrowings are
affected by market interest rates. Additionally,
because of the terms and conditions of many of the
loan documents and deposit accounts, a change in
interest rates could also affect the projected




maturities of the loan portfolio and/or the deposit
base. Accordingly, TrustCo considers interest rate
risk to be a market risk for the Company.

Interest rate nsk management focuses on
evaluating the Ievels of net interest income and the
fair value of capltal in varying interest rate cycles
within Board- approved policy limits. Interest rate risk
management also must take into consideration,
among other factors the Company's overall credit,
operating mcome operating cost, and capital profile.
The Asset Allocat|on Committee, which includes all
members of exécutive management and reports
quarterly to the Board of Directors, monitors and
manages mterest rate risk to maintain an acceptable
level of potentlal change in the fair value of capital as
a result of changes in market interest rates.

The Compani uses an internal model as the primary
tool to identify, quantlfy and project changes in
interest rates and the impact on the balance sheet.
The model utlll.zes assumptions with respect to cash
flows and prepayment speeds taken both from industry
sources and mterna[ly generated data based upon
historical trend:. in the Bank’s balance sheet.
Assumptions based on the historical behavior of
deposit rates and balances in relation to changes in
market mterest rates are also incorporated into the
model. This model assumes a fair value amount with
respect to non-time deposit categories since these
deposits are part of the core deposit products of the
Company. These assumptions are inherently uncertain
and, as a result, the model cannot precisely measure
the fair value oi capital or precisely predict the impact
of fluctuations i |n interest rates on the fair value of capital.

Using this mternal model, the fair values of capital
projections as of December 31, 2006 are referenced
below. The base case scenario shows the present
estimate of the fair value of capital assuming no
change in the Operating environment or operating
strategies and|no change in interest rates from those
existing in the !rnarketplace as of December 31,
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2006. The table mdncates the impact on the fair value
of capital assumlng interest rates were to instan-
taneously increase by 100 bp, 200 bp and 300 bp or to
decrease by 100 bp and 200 bp. !

| Esttmated Percentage of
Fair value of Capital to

As of December 31, 2006 Falr value of Assets

+300 BP : | 9.98%
+200 BP : 11.07
+100 BP ‘ 12.53
Current rates | 14.05
-100 BP l l 13.64
-200 BP ' 12.24

At December 31, 2006 the book value of capital
{excluding the impact of accumulated other
comprehensive income) to assets was 7.67%.

The fair value 'of capital is calculated as the fair
value of assets less the fair value of liabilities in the
interest ratio scenario presented The fair value of
capital in the current rate en\nronment is 14.05% of
the fair value of assets whereas! the current book
value of capital to assets is 7. 67,% at December 31,
2006. The significant difference between these two
capital ratios reflects the impact that a fair value
calculation can have on the capltal ratios of a
company. The fair value of capltal calculations take
into consideration the fair value of deposits, including
those deposits considered core deposuts along with
the fair value of assets such as the loan portfolio.

A secondary method to identify and manage the
interest rate risk profile is the static gap analysis.
Interest sensitivity gap analysis measures the
difference between the assets and liabilities repricing
or maturing within specific time penods An asset-
sensitive position indicates thatthere are more rate-
sensitive assets than rate- sensntlve liabilities
repricing or maturing within specnflc time periods,
which would generally imply a favorable impact on

! ll

1
NONPERFORMING ASSETS :
(dollars in thousands} As of December 31,
2006 2005 ! 2004 | 2003 2002
Loans in nonaccnual statUs .. ..o $ 5,713 1,662 j 557 ! — 615
Loans contractually past due 3 payments or more ‘
and still accrumg interest ........... ... . ... ... 21 35 ! — - —
Restructured Ioans ............................ 1,189 1,518 X 2,610 3,260 4,303
Total nonperformlng 0T 13- 7,113 3,215 | 3,167 i 38,260 4,918
Foreclosed real elzstate ......................... 92 23 — I — 86
Total nonperforming assets . .................... $ 7,205 3,238 3,167 If 3,260 5,004
Allowance for Iocm lo88SeS ... ... $35,616 45,377 ' 49,384 48,739 52,558
Allowance cover.age of nonperforming loans ........ 5.01x 14.11 f 15.58 14.95 10.69
Nonperforming Ioans asa%oftotalloans ......... 0.40% 0.22 ' 0.26 0.28 0.35
Nonperforming assets as a % of total assets . . . ... .. 0.23 on 0.1 | 0.12 0.19
; il
i
i
| l
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net interest income in periods of rising interest rates
and a negative impact in periods of falling rates. A
liability-sensitive position would generally imply a
negative impact on net interest income in periods of
rising rates and a positive impact in periods of falling
rates.

Static gap analysis has limitations because it
cannot measure precisely the effect of interest rate
movements, and competitive pressures on the
repricing and maturity characteristics of interest-
earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. In
addition, a significant portion of the interest sensitive
assets are fixed rate securities with relatively long
lives whereas the interest-bearing liabilities are not
subject 10 these same limitations. As a result, certain
assets and liabilities may in fact reprice at different
times and at different volumes than the static gap
analysis would indicate.

The Company recognizes the relatively long-term
nature of the fixed rate residential loan portfolic. To
fund those tong-term assets the Company cultivates
long-term depaosit relationships (often called core
deposits). These core deposit relationships tend to
be longer term in nature and not as susceptible to
changes in interest rates. Core deposit balances
allow the Company to take on certain interest rate
risk with respect to the asset side of the balance
sheet.

The table “Interest Rate Sensitivity” presents an
analysis of the interest-sensitivity gap position at
December 31, 2006. All interest-earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities are shown based upon
their contractual maturity or repricing date adjusted
for forecasted prepayment rates. Asset prepayment
and liability répricing periods are selected after
considering the current rate environment, industry
prepayment and data specific to the Company. The
interest rate sensitivity table indicates that TrustCo is
asset sensitive in the period 0-90 days and in the
period over 5 years. The table indicates that TrustCo
is liability sensitive in the other time periods. The
effect of being asset sensitive is that should interest
rates increase the Company would be able to
reinvest these assets at higher rates. Conversely,
should interest rates fall, the Company would record
less interest income due to reinvesting the assets in
a lower interest rate environment. Likewise in those
time periods that the Company is liability sensitive
the impact on interest income would be the opposite
of that described above for the asset sensitive time
periods.

There are several significant shortcomings
inherent in the gap analysis. For example, although
certain assets and liabilities have similar periods to
maturity or to repricing, they may react in different
degrees to changes in market interest rates. Also,
the interest rates on certain types of assets and
liabilities may fluctuate in advance of changes in

market interest rates, while other assets and
liabilities may lag behind changes in market interest
rates. Management takes these factors, and others,
into consideration when reviewing the Bank's gap
position and establishing its asset/liability strategy.

Liquidity Risk

TrustCo seeks to obtain favorable funding sources
and to maintain prudent levels of liquid assets in
order to satisfy various liquidity dermans. In addition
to serving as a funding source for maturing
obligations, liquidity provides flexibility in responding
to customer initiated needs. Many factors affect the
ability to meet liquidity needs, including changes in
the markets served by the Bank’s network of
branches, the mix of assets and liabilities, and
general economic conditions.

The Company actively manages its liquidity
position through target ratios established under its
Asset/ Liability Management policies. Continual
monitoring of these ratios, both historically and
through forecasts under multiple interest rate
scenarios, allows TrustCo to employ strategies
necessary to maintain adequate liquidity levels.
Management has also developed various liquidity
alternatives should abnormal situatiens develop.

The Company achieves its liability-based liquidity
objectives in a variety of ways. Liabilities can be
classified into three categories for the purposes of
managing liability-based liquidity: core deposits,
purchased money, and capital market funds. TrustCo
seeks deposits that are dependable and predictable
and that are based as much on the fevel and gquality
of service as they are on interest rate. Average core
deposits (total deposits less time deposits greater
than $100 thousand) amounted to $2.33 billion in
2006 and $2.30 billion in 2005, Average balances of
core deposits are detailed in the table “Mix of
Average Sources of Funding.”

In addition to core deposits, another source of
liability-based funding available to TrustCo is
purchased money, which consists of long-term and
short-term borrowings, federal funds purchased,
securities sold under repurchase agreements, and
time deposits greater than $100 thousand. The
average balances of these purchased liabilities are
detailed in the table "Mix of Average Sources of
Funding.” During 2006, the average balance of
purchased liabilities was $345.4 million, compared
with $284.9 million in 2005.

TrustCo also has a line of credit available with the
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York.

Off-Balance Sheet Risk

Commitments to extend credit: The Bank
makes contractual commitments to extend credit,
and extends lines of credit which are subject to the
Bank’s credit approval-and monitoring procedures. At




X

TRUSTCO : “
Bank Cop NY

Management’s Discussion and An:ﬁlysis (continued)

SUMMARY (|)F LOAN LOSS EXPERIENCE

|
|
' 2004 |

(dollars in thousar'wds) 2006 2005 ' 2003 2002
Amount of loans oulstandlng at end of year : It

(less unearned] jncome) ... $1,762,514 1,470,719 1,240,065 1,162,266 1,422,301
Average loans outstandrng during year '

(less average unearned income) ............. 1,611,355 1,336,899 1,176,856 1, 275 023 1,512,448
Balance of allowance at beginning of year ....... 45,377 49,384 i 48,739 52 558 57,203
Adjustment upon adoptlon of Staff Accounting !

Bulletin No. 103 .. ........................ {7,600} — — , — —
Loans charged off: | |

Commercial ..1........................... 19 656 X 335 432 997

Realestate . !....... ... ... ... ... . ...... 1,863 1,561 5,054 8,651 6,648

Installment . . .. ... ... . 235 247 408 | 5156 705

Total ..... : ........................... 2,117 2,464 5,797 | 9,508 8,350
Recoveries of loans previously charged off: !

Commercial ..l ... ... ... 599 440 ' 446 41,393 803

Real estate . .i ........................... 2,767 4,121 . 5,334 3,003 1,285

Installment . . J ........................... 165 156 i 212 183 197

Total ....! L 3,531 4,717 " 5992 i 4579 2,285
Net loans charged off (recovered) .. .. .......... {1,414) {2,253) {195) i 5,019 6,065
Provision (credit)for loan losses .............. {3,575) 6,260) | 450 | 1,200 1,420
Balance of allowance atendofyear ............ $ 35616 45,377 49,384 148,739 52,558
Net charge offs (recovenes) as a percent of average ‘

loans outstandlng during year |

(less average unearned income) . ............ {.09)% (7 (.02) 40
Allowance as a percent of loans outstanding !

at end of year | ........................... 2.02 3.09 ! 3.98 o417 3.70

December 31, |2006 and 2005, commitments to
extend credit i |n the form of loans, including unused
lines of credit, amounted to $297.6 million and
$306.7 million lrespectrvely In management's
opinion, there are no material commitments to
extend credit that represent unusual risk.

The Company has issued conditional commitments
in the form of .,tandby letters of credit to guarantee
payment on behalf of a customer and guarantee the
performance of a customer to a third party. Standby
letters of credli generally arise in connection with
Iendlng relatlonshlps The credit risk involved in
issuing these mstruments is essentially the same as
that involved i |n extending loans to customers.
Contingent ob[lgatlons under standby letters of credit
totaled approximately $4.3 million and $2.8 million at
December 31,/2006 and 2005, respectively, and
represent the maximum potential future payments
the Company uould be required to make. Typically,
these mstruments have terms of 12 months or less
and expire unused therefore, the total amounts do
not necessarily represent future cash requirements.
Each customer is evaluated individually for
credrtworthrness under the same underwriting
standards used for commitments to extend credit
and on- balance sheet instruments. Company
policies governrng loan collateral apply to standby
letters of credit at the time of credit extension. Loan-

to-value ratios aire generally con15|stent with loan-to-
value requirements for other commercral loans
secured by similar types of collateral The fair value
of the Company's standby Ietters of credit at
December 31, 2006 and 2005 was insignificant.

Other off-balance sheet l"lSk TrustCo does not
engage in actlwtles involving mterest rate swaps,
forward placement contracts, oriany other
instruments commonly referred|to as “derivatives”.
Management believes these instruments pose a high
degree of risk, and that investing in them is
unnecessary.

TrustCo has no off-balance sheet partnerships,
joint ventures, or other risk shanng entities.

. . l
Noninterest lncome and Expense

Noninterest i mcome Nonlnterest income is a
significant source of revenue for the Company and
an important factor in overall results Total
noninterest mcome was $14.9 mﬂhon in 2006, $25.3
million in 2005 and $32.0 mlllron in 2004. Included in
the 2006 results are $596 thousand of net securities
losses compared with net garns of approximately
$6.0 million in 2005 and $13.7 mllllon in 2004,
Excludlng securities transactrons noninterest
income was $15.5 million in 2006 and $19.3 m||||on
in 2005 and $18 3 millionin 2004

A
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INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY

{dollars in thousands)

At December 31, 2006

Repricing in:
0-90 91-365 1-5 Overs Rate
days days years years Insensitive Total
Totalassets................... $641,015 257,992 998,767 1,151,328 112,085 3,161,187
Cumulative total assets ......... $641,015 899,007 1,897,774 3,049,102 3,161,187
Total liabilities
and shareholders’ equity ....... $317,030 786,189 1,352,738 438,992 266,238 3,161,187
Cumulative total liabilities
and shareholders' equity . . ... .. $317,030 1,103,219 2,455,857 2,894,949 3,161,187
Cumulative interest )
sensitivity gap. . . .. .. .. e $323,985 (204,212} (558,183) 154,153
Cumulative gap as a % of interest
earning assets for the period ... .. .. 50.54% (22.72) (29.41) 5.06
Cumulative interest sensitive
assets to liabilities. . .. ........... 202.79 81.49 77.27 105.32

The Trust Department contributes a large
recurring portion of noninterest income through fees
generated by providing fiduciary and investment
management services. Income from these fiduciary
activities totalled $5.5 million in 2006, $6.0 million in
2005, and $5.9 million in 2004. Trust fees are
generally calculated as a percentage of the assets
under management by the Trust Department. Assets
under management by the Trust Department are not
included on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements because the Trust Department holds
these assets in a fiduciary capacity. At December 31,
2006 and 2005 assets under management by the
Trust Department were approximately $201.4 million
and $886.5 million, respectively.

Changes in fees for services to customers reflect
changes in the fee scale used for pricing the
services and the volume of servicas customers
utilized.

Included in the category of other noninterest
income are certain transactions that occurred in
2005 as follows:

» the sale of the former operations center in
Schenectady at a net gain of approximately $600
thousand,

+ the sale of the credit card portfolio for a net gain of
approximately $1.4 million and

» the sale of the Canajoharie Branch for a net gain
of approximately $600 thousand.

Similar items did not recur in 2006.

Noninterest expense: Noninterest expense was
$49.1 million in 2006, compared with $46.2 million in
2005 and $48.2 million in 2004. TrustCo’s operating
philosophy stresses the importance of monitoring
and controlling the level of noninterest expense. The
efficiency ratio is a strong indicator of how well

.controlled and monitored these expenses are fora

hanking enterprise. A low ratio indicates highly
efficient performance. TrustCo’s efficiency ratio was
42.0% in 2006, 38.3% in 2005 and 38.8% in 2004,
Excluded from the efficiency ratio calculation was
$22 thousand, $3.2 million, and $248 thousand of
non-recurring income primarily consisting of gain on
sale of various assets and $56 thousand, $812
thousand and $1.2 million of non-recurring expenses
primarily consisting of computer consulting costs for
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Salaries and employee benetits are the most
significant component of noninterest expense. For
20086, these expenses amounted to $18.4 million,
compared with $18.7 million in 2005, and $20.7
million in 2004.

Net occupancy expense increased $639 thousand
between 2005 and 2006 due primarily to new branch
openings during 2005 and 2006. Equipment
expense, increased $321 thousand for 2006 to $3.0
million as compared to $2.7 million in 2005. The
increase in net occupancy expense and equipment
expense is the result of new equipment purchased
tor the branch expansion program.

Professional services expense increased to $3.9
million in 2008 compared to $3.4 million in 2005 and
$3.7 million in 2004. The increase in professional
service expense is due primarily to additional
expenditures with respect to the TrustCo Chairman'’s
consulting contract, additional fees for accounting
and tax advice and fees paid for enhancements to
deposit products, including internet banking services.

Qutsourced service expense was $4.2 millicn in
2006 compared to $4.1 million in 2005. The increase
is the result of increased volumes in 20065.

Advertising expense for 2006 was $2.3 million and
$1.4 million for 2005 and 2004. The increase in 2006
was the result of expenses for advertising and
promotional programs with respect to new branch




openings and increased efforts throughout the
various areas 'IrustCo operates.

Changes in other components of noninterest
expense are the results of normal banking activities
and the increa led activities associated with new
branching facilities.

Income Tax

In 2006, TrustCo recognized income tax expense
of $22.3 milliori, as compared to $30.8 million in
2005 and $26. 8 million in 2004. The tax expense on
the Company's income was different than tax
expense at the federal statutory rate of 35%, due
- primarily to tax-exempt income and, to a lesser
extent, the eﬁect of New York State income taxes.

Deferred tax assets are recognized subject to
rmanagement’ s judgment that realization is more
likely than not. ]Based primarily on the sufficiency of
historical and future taxable income, management
believes it is more likely than not that the net deferred
tax assets of $22.8 million and $30.2 million at
December 31,[2006 and 2005, respectively, will be
realized. In addition to the deferred tax asset
described above the Company has a $6.8 million
and $4.0 mtlllon at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively of a deferred tax asset relative to the
net unrealized/losses on securities available for sale
and a deferred tax liability at December 31, 2006 of
$4.8 million as‘ a result’of the overfunded portion in
the Company's pension and post retirement benefit
plans.

Cenain tax strategies utilized by the Company
prior to 2007 rnay be negatively effected by
proposed New York State budget propesals. Should
these budget proposals be implemented, future tax
expense would be expected to increase.

Contractual Obligations

The Compa ny is contractually obligated to make
the following payments on long-term debt and leases
as of December 31, 2006:

{dollars in thousands)  .Payments Due by Period:

Less Than 1-3 3-5 More Than
1Year. Years Years 5 Years Total

Federal Home

[FERCS. o Bk Sl PR L P

= e
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In addition, the Company is contractualty obligated
to pay data processmg vendors approxnmately
$4 million to $5 million per year through 2013.

Also, the Company is obllgated under its various
employee beneflt ptans to make certaln payments in
the future. The payments vary from $1.6 million to
$1.7 million through 2016. Addltlonally, the Company
is obligated to pay the accumulated benefits under
the supplementary pension plan|wh|ch amounted to
$4.7 million as of December 31,/2006. Actual
payments under the plan would be made in

Management S Dlscussmn and Analysis (ontinued)

accordance with' the plan provisions.

Impact of lnﬂatlon and Changing Prices

The consolldated financial statements for the years
ended 20086, 2005 and 2004 have been prepared in
accordance with accounting pnncnples generally
accepted in the United States of America which
require the measurement of flnanc:al position and
operating results in terms of hlstorrcal dollars without
considering the changes in the relatlve purchasing
power of money over time due to inflation. The
impact of inflation is reflected in
of operations, l

Unlike most industrial companles nearly all the
assets and liabilities of the Company are monetary.

As a result, changes in mterest rates have a
greater impact on the Company s performance than
do the effects of general levels of inflation, because
interest rates do not necessanly move in the same
direction or to the same extent as the price of goods
and services. "

Stock Optlons |

In the fourth quarter of 2005 the Board of Director’s
of the Company approved the accelerated vesting of
all cutstanding unvested stock optlons to purchase
shares of common stock. These options were

lthe increasing cost

previously awarded to executwe officers and
empioyees under the 1995 and2004 Stock Option
Plans. By accelerating the vestmg of these options
the Company estimates that approxlmately $1.3
million of future compensation expense net of tax,
was eliminated which would have been recorded
under FAS 123H subseguent to its adoption on

Loan Bank January 1, 2006. The stock optlon accelerations
borrowings.. f.. $ 30 29 - — 59 were done in anticipation of the adoption of FASB
Operating leases! .. 3,385 6,574 6,373 30,117 46,449 Statement 123R on January 1/2006.
P g Options to purchase 882, 100 shares of the
Total ‘ $3.415 6,603 6,373 30,117 46,508 Company's common stock, wh_llch would otherwise
I | i
NONINTEREST INCOME '
(dollars in thousands) For the year ended December 31, 2006 vs. 2005
2006 2005 , 2004 tAmount Percent
Trust departmentincome ,..................... 3 5,463 6,009 ! 5,869 (546) (9 1)%
Fees for serwces tocustomers ................. 8,572 8171 ' 10,486 401
Net gain (loss) oh securities transactions ......... {596) 5,999 13,712 {6,595) a 09 9)
Other ........ : ........ [ 1,420 510 . | 1,898 i {3,690) (72.2)
Total noninterestincome . ................... $14,859 25,289 i 31,965 |(10,430) (41.2)%

i
I
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NONINTEREST EXPENSE
(dollars in thousands) For the year ended December 31, 2006 vs. 2005
2006 2005 2004 Amount Percent

Salaries and employee benefits .. ... ...... ... ... $18,427 18,663 20,697 (236) (1.3)%
Netoccupancy expense . ....................... 7.947 7,308 6,601 639 8.7
Equipmentexpense ............... ... .. ... 3,042 2,721 2,283 321 1.8
Professional services ............. ... ... ...... 3,925 3,372 3,685 553 16.4
OQutsourced services ................. . ... ... 4,246 4,093 4,348 153 3.7
AdverlisSing expense . . ... . i 2,277 1,415 1,367 862 60.9
Other real estate expense (income), net ........... 27 (617} (739) 644 (104.4)
03T 9,171 9,277 9,923 (106) (1.1)

Total noninterest expense ........... $49,062 486,232 2,830 6.1%

48,165

have vested from time to time over the next four
years, became immediately exercisable as a result
of this action. The number of shares and the
exercise prices of the options subject to the
acceleration remained unchanged. Also, all of the
other terms of the options remain the same. The
Company recorded $127 thousand of expense
related to this acceleration based upen an analysis
pertormed in accordance with APB Opinion 25.

The accelerated options included 749,500 options
held by executive officers and 132,600 options held
by other employees. Based upon the Company’s
closing stock price of $12.76 price per share on the
date of accelerated vesting certain of the options
were below and others above the closing market
price as follows:

determing funded status be measured as of the
end of the employer's fiscal year, and that changes
in funded status be measured as of the end of the
employer’s fiscal year, and that changes in funded
status be recognized in comprehensive income in
the year the changes occur. Statement No. 158
does not change the amount of net periodic benefit
cost included in net income or address
measurement issues related to defined benefit or
post-retirement plans. The requirement to
recognize funded status is effective for fiscal years
ending after December 15, 2006. The requirement
to measure assets and obligations as of the
employer’s fiscal year is effective for fiscal years
ending after December 15, 2008. The unrecognized
overfunded pre-tax components of the defined
benefit pension plan and the retiree medical plan of

g::gt ngfi%ast;iires Eﬁr:me $12.1 million were recorded on the balarice sheet

5005 211200 $12.15 at December 31, 2006. Balances previously

2004 394'500 $13.55 regognlzed in the financial statements were _

2002 76:400 $11.83 adjusted to reflect Fhose overfunded posxltlons with
882.100 the offset as an adjustment to the deferred income

The decision to accelerate the vesting of these
options was made primarily to reduce non-cash
compensation expense that would have been
recorded in its income statement in future periods
upon the adoption of FASB Statement No. 123R
(Share-Based Payment) in January 2008. No
options were granted in 2006.

Recently Adopted Accounting Changes

(a) Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Post Retirement Plans ‘

In September 20086, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (“FASB") issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standard No. 158, Employers’
Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Post Retirement Plans, an amendment of FASB
Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R)
(“Statement 1587). For defined benefit and post
retirement plans, Statement 158 requires that the
funded status be recognized in the statement of
financial condition, that assets and obligations that’

tax accounts and to accumulated other compre-
hensive income, as an element of shareholder’s
equity.

(b) Prior Year Immaterial Uncorrected
Misstaternents

In September 2006, the Staff of the Securities
and Exchange Commission ("SEC") issued Staff

Efficiency Ratio

1 42.0%

40, 38.8%
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Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 108 “Considering
the Effects of pnor Year Misstatements in Current
Year Financial Statements.” SAB No. 108 requires
quantification o’r prior year immaterial uncorrected
misstatements under both the “rollover approach”
and the “iron curtam approach.” The “rollover
approach” quantlfles a misstatement based on the
amount of the error onglnatlng in the current year
income statement but ignores the effects of
correcting the portlon of the current year balance
sheet mlsstaternent that originated in prior years.
The “iron curtaln approach” quantifies a
misstatement based on the effects of correcting the
misstatement e)ustnng in the balance sheet at the
end of the current year, irrespective of the
misstatement’siyear(s) of origination. Prior to SAB
No. 108, the Company utilized the rollover approach
when quantn‘ylng misstatements. The provisions of
SAB No. 108 must be applied to financial
statements for fiscal years ending after November
15, 20086.

As a result of the adoption of SAB No. 108,
TrustCo recogmzed a reduction in other liabilities
and a decrease in the allowance for loan losses, as
described below These entries were recorded as
adjustments of|the beginning of the year 2006
opening balances for these accounts and the
impact, net of tax was reflected in shareholders’
equity as a cumulatlve effect adjustment to
undivided prof|ts a component of shareholders
equity.

The entries 10 reduce other liabilities were in
connection wrth the following items:

Apprommately $3.0 million of unused accrued
interest for potential tax settlements related to
certain tax positions, including the timing of loan
charge offs forEtax return purposes, in connection
with mergers in 1985 and 1991.

Approxrmately $1.4 million in unused accrued
expenses related to the antlmpated termination of a
computer services contract in the early 1990s.
Negotiations subsequently resolved the matter
without reqwrlng full payment.

Apprommate!y $2.0 million in unused accrued
expenses related to credit risk associated with
unadvanced amounts on credit cards, not reversed
as this portfollo was paid down.

These misstatements were not material to the
consolidated flnanolal statements in each of the
respective yea rs affected.

The reduotlon of the allowance for loan losses
was the result'of excess provisions for loan losses
recorded primarily in the 1990s. This misstatement
primarily occurred as a result of the Company’s
extrapolation of historical loan loss experience over
the future expeoted lives of the respective loan
portfolios (also known as “life of the loan”
approach), and the Company did not consider
qualitative factors which impact credit quality. The

% TRUSTCO
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misstatement of the provision forjloan losses was
not considered matenal to the Company 5
consolidated financial statements in any of the
respective years |mpacted by these misstatements.
Under the rollover approach descnbed above,
management did not consider these items to be
material to the consolidated hnanmal statements.
However, under the dual approach required by SAB

. No. 108, these |tems are being adjusted effective as

of January 1, 2006.
In accordancelwnh the transmon provisions of

" SAB No. 108, the Company recorded the

cumulative effect of these items as an adjustment to
its opening undlv|ded profits for flscal 2006, net of
their respective tax effects.

Critical Accoulntlng Policies

Pursuant to recent SEC gurdance management of
the Company is encouraged to evaluate and disclose
those accounting policies that are judged to be
critical policies - those most |mp0rtant to the portrayal
of the Company’s financial condition and results, and
that require management 3 most difficult subjective .
or complex Judgments Management considers the
accounting policy relating to the|a|lowance for loan
losses to be a critical accounting policy given the
inherent uncertamty in evaluatlng the levels of the
allowance requrred to cover credlt losses in the port-
folio and the material effect that[such judgments can
have on the results of operations! Included in Note 1
to the Consolldated Financial Statements contained
in the Company's 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K
is a description of the srgmflcant accounting policies
that are utilized by the Company in the preparation
of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Pending Accounting Pronouncements

In Septemberi 2008, the FASB issued Statement
of Financial Accounting Standard No. 157, Fair -
Value Measurements (“SFAS 15?”) This statement
defines fair value, establishes aiframework for
measuring fair value under generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”) lland expands
disclosures about fair value measurements SFAS
157 is effective for financial statements issued for
fiscal years beglnnrng after November 15, 2007,
however, it is not expected to have a material effect.
on the Company’s financial statements

In February 2008, FAGB issued SFAS No. 155,
“Accounting for Certain Hybrld FlnanC|aI
Instruments,’ Wthh eliminates the exemption from
applying SFAS 133 to interests|in securitized
financial assets, so that similar mstruments are
accounted for S|m||arly regardless of the form of the
instruments. SFAS 155 also allows the election of
fair value measurement at acqmsrtlon at issuance,
or when'a prewously recogmzed financial .
instrument is subject to a remeasurement event

l
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

SUMMARY OF UNAUDITED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL lNFORMATlON

(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

2006 2005
a1 Qa2 03 a4 Year 0} a2 03 Q4 Year
Income statement: .

Interest income . ....... $40,709 41,942 42,842 43,714 169,207 34885 37,016 38433 39,840 . 150174
Interest expense ....... 15,198 17,018 18,479 20,245 70,940 10,025 10,308 11,501 13,823 45,657
Net interest income 25511 24,924 24,363 23,469 98,267 24,860 26,708 26,932 26,017 104,517
Provision (credit} for

loanlosses .......... (1,800) (1,775) — — (3,578) (1,500) (1,580) (1,680) (1,500) (6,260)
Net interest income

after provision for ' :

loanlosses ......... 27,311 26,699 24,363 23,469 101,842 26,360 28,288 28612 27517 110,777
Noninterest income . .. .. 3,305 3,917 3,895 3,742 14,859 7,641 6,283 6,435 4930 25,289
Noninterest expense .... 11,925 11,986 11,699 13,452 49062 11,233 11606 10814 12579 46,232
Income before '

income taxes ........ 18.691 18,630 16,559 13,759 67,639 22,768 22,965 24233 19,868 89,834
Income fax expense . .. .. 6,325 6,206 5,380 4,403 22,314 7,861 7,980 8,514 6,490 30,845
Netincome ........... $12,366 12,424 11,179 9,356 45,325 14097 14985 15719 13,378 58,989

Per share data: e
Basic earnings ......... $ .165 166 -- 149 125 605 199 200 210 179 787
Diluted earnings ....... .164 169 .149 125 .603 197 189 208 178 782
.160 160 160 .160 640 150 150 150 160 610

Cash dividends declared . .

Adoption is effective for all financial instruments
acquired or issued after the beginning of the first
fiscal year that begins after September 15, 2006.
Early adoption is permitted. This statement will be
effective in 2007, however, it is not expected to
have a material effect on the Company's financial
statements.

In July 2006, FASB issued Financial Accounting
Standards Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”. FIN
48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income
taxes recognized in an enterprises’ financial
statements in accordance with FASB Statement
No. 108, “Accounting for Income Taxes”. FIN 48
prescribes a recognition threshold and
measurement attributable for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax
return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on
derecognition, classification, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim pericds, disclosures and
transitions. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company
is currently analyzing the effects of FIN 48.

Forward-Looking Statements

Statements included in this review and in future
filings by TrustCo with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, in TrustCo’s press releases, and in oral

statements made with the approval of an authorized
executive officer, which are not historical or current
facts, are “forward-locking statements” made
pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, and are
subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could
cause actual results to difter materially from
historical earnings and those presently anticipated or
projected. TrustCo wishes to caution readers not to
place undue reliance on any such forward-looking
statements, which speak only as of the date made.
The following important factors, among others, in
some cases have affected and in the future could
affect TrustCo's actual results, and could cause
TrustCe's actual financial performance to differ
materially from that expressed in any forward-looking
statement: (1) credit risk, (2) interest rate: risk, {3)
competition, (4) changes in the regulatory
environment, and (5) changes in local market area
and general business and economic trends. The
foregoing list should not be construed as exhaustive,
and the Company disclaims any obligation to
subsequently revise any forward-locking statements
to reflect events or circumstances after the date of
such statements, or to reflect the occurrence of
anticipated or unanticipated events.
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' Management’S"Discussior} and Ana"lysis (continued)

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL DATA | |
{dollars in thousands, except per share data) Years Ended December 31, ||
2006 2005 | 2004 |2003 2002
Statement of income data: ,r il
Interestincome [......... ..ot $ 169,207 150,174 138,786 137,130 153,735
Interestexpense| ........................ 70,940 45,657 | 38,757 40,739 58,020
Net interest incorpe ...................... 98,267 104,517 100,029 9§,391 85,715
Provision (credit) for loan losses ............ (3,575) {6,260) | 450 1,200 1,420
Nel interest |ncome after provision
tor loan Iosseﬂ ........................ 101,842 110,777 99,579 95,191 94,295
Noninterest i mcome ...................... 15,455 19,290 18,253 19 842 19,799
Net {loss) gain on securities transactions ... .. ’ (596) 5,999 13,712 9 807 7,499
Noninterest expense ..................... 49,062 46,232 48,165 48 486 55,326
Income before |n|come taxes ... ............ 67,639 89,834 83,379 76,354 66,267
Incometaxes . .| ....... ... .o 22,314 30,845 26,839 23,323 17,023
Netincome ... .|... ... ... .. oot 5 45,325 58,989 | 56,540 53,031 49,244
Share data:
Average equivalent diluted shares
(inthousands) ................c..euo.. 75,149 75,397 75,081 75,306 74,618
Tangible book value ................. PR $ 3.19 3.05 3.02 3.06 3.16
Cashdividends |...... ... ............... .640 810 .600 .600 .600
Basiceamings .|........... . ... i .605 787 761 713 678
Diluted €amings|. . . .. ..o vt 603 .782 .753 i .704 660
Financial: ]
Returnon averageassets .............. ... 1.52% 2.07 2.00 41.96 1.83
Return on average shareholders’ equity ... ... 1871 26.07 26.65 26.21 26.08
Cash dividend payoutratio ................ 105.70 77.48 78.83 83.98 88.80
Tier 1 capital to cwerage assets (leverage ratio) 7.67 8.04 7.74 7.53 7.78-
Tier 1 capital as a % of total risk adjusted : '
assets ... ... ..l 14.88 16.58 17.09 16.54 15.48 -
Total capital as a % of total risk adjusted ‘
assets ... ... i 16.14 17.85 18.37 |1 7.82 16.77
Efficiency ratio J........................ 42.03 38.29 | 38.78 38.33 36.66
Netinterest margin . .. ........c.coeove.... 3.50% 3.90 3.85 || 3.04 4.00

Average balances:'

- i 1
Total assets ... $2,973,952 2,844,974 2,528,195 2,710,175 2,693,505

Earningassets . ....... ... ... . 0o 2,900,253 2,767,214 2,729,280 2, 606 292 2,579,379
Loans, net ... ..o 1,611,355 1,336,899 1,176,856 1,275,023 1,512,448
Allowance for loan losses ................. : (35,538) (47,653) |(49,299) (51,311) (56,525)
Securities availableforsale ................ 1,108,631 1,024,184 1,057,845 833,805 ~ 568,056
Deposits . . . . .. [ ......................... 2,628,338 2,505,967 2,474,179 2,340,827 2,212,440
Short-term borrowmgs .................... 95,239 83,381 100,855 - 107,799 210,363
Long-termdebt | . ... ... .. L 72 99 | 151 [t 326 . 510

Shareholders equny ..................... 230,259 226,571 223,719 225,045 214,963
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Glossary of Terms

Allowance for Loan Losses

A balance sheet account which represents management’s
estimate of probable credit losses in the loan portfolio.
The provision for loan losses is added to the allowance
account, charge offs of loans decrease the allowance
balance and recoveries on previously charged off loans
serve to increase the balance.

Basic Earnings Per Share
Net income divided by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period.

Cash Dividends Per Share

Total cash dividends for each share outstanding on the
record dates.

Comprehensive Income

Net income plus the change in selected items recorded
directly to capital such as the net change in unrealized
market gains and losses on securities available for sale
and the overfunded/underfunded positions in the
retirement plans.

Core Deposits

Deposits that are traditionally stable, including all deposits
other than time deposits of $100,000 or more.

Derivative Investments
Investments in futures contracts, forwards, swaps, or other
investments with similar characteristics.

Diluted Earnings Per Share

Net income divided by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period, taking into
consideration the effect of any dilutive stock options.
Earning Assets

The sum of interest-bearing deposits with banks, securities
available for sale, investment securities, loans, net of
unearned income, and federal funds sold and other short
term investments.

Efficiency Ratio

Noninterest expense {(excluding nonrecurring charges, and
other real estate expense) divided by taxable equivalent
net interest income plus noninterest income (excluding
securities transactions and other non-recurring income
items). This is an indicator of the recurring total cost of
operating the Company in relation to the recurring total
income generated.

Federal Funds Sold

A short term (generally one business day) investment of
excess cash reserves from one bank to another.

Government Sponsored Enterprises (GSE)

Government Sponsored Enterprises are corporations
sponsored by the United States government and include
the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB), the Federal Home
Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC or Freddie Mac), and
the Federal National Morigage Association (FNMA or
Fannie Mae). Obligations of these enterprises are not
guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United States.

Impaired Loans

Loans, principally commercial, where it is probable that the
borrower will be unable to make the principal and interest
payments according to the contractual terms of the loan,
and all leans restructured subsequent to January 1, 1995,
Interest Bearing Liabilities

The sum of interest bearing deposits, federal funds
purchased, securities sold under agreements to repurchase,

.short-term borrowings, and long-term debt.

£ TRUSTCO
Bank Corp NY

Interest Rate Spread

The difference batween the taxable equivalent yield on
earning assets and the rate paid on interest bearing liabilities.
Liquidity

The ability to meet loan commitments, deposit withdrawals,
and maturing borrowings as they come due.

Net Interest Income

The difference between income on earning assets and
interest expense on interest bearing liabilitias.

Net Interest Margin

Fully taxable equivalent net interest income as a percentage
of average earning assets.

Net Loans Charged Off
Reductions to the allowance for loan losses written off as
losses, nel of the recovery of loans previously charged off.

Nenaccrual Loans -

Loans for which no periodic accrual of interest income is
recognized.

Nonperforming Assets

The sum of nonperforming loans plus foreclosed real
estate properties.

Nonperforming Loeans

The sum of loans in a nonaccrual status (for purposes of
interest recognition), plus loans whose repayment criteria
have been renegotiated to less than market terms due to
the inability of the borrowers to repay the loan in accordance
with its original terms, plus accruing loans three payments
or more past due as to principal or interest payments.
Parent Company

A company that owns or controls a subsidizary through the
ownership of voting stock.

Real Estate Owned

Real estate acquired through foreclosure proceedings.
Restructured Loans

A refinanced loan in which the bank allows the borrower
certain concessions that would normally not be considered.
The concessions are made in light of the bc:rrower s
tinancial difficulties and the bank’s objective to maximize
recovery on the loan.

Return on Average Assets

Net income as a percentage of average total assets.
Return on Average Equity

Net income as a percentage of average equity, excluding
the impact of accumulated other comprehensive income.
Risk-Adjusted Assets

A regulatory calculation that assigns risk factors to various
assets on the balance sheet.

Risk-Based Capital

The amount of capital required by federal regulatory
standards, based on a risk-weighting of assets.

Tangible Book Value Per Share

Total shareholders’ equity (less goodwill) divided by shares
outstanding on the same date. This provides an indication
of the tangible book value of a share of stock,

Taxable Equivalent (TE)

Tax exempt income that has been adjusted to an amount
that would yield the same after tax income had the income
been subject to taxation at the statutory fedwnral and/or
state income tax rates.

Tier 1 Capital

Total shareholders’ equity accumulated other
comprehensive income,
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Management’s Report on Internal Control ovel[’* Financial Reporting

The management of TrustCo Bank Corp NY is responsible for establishing and malntalnlng
adequate internal control over financial reporting. TrustCo’s internal control over fmanmal reporting
isa process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of flnan0|al
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
accountlng principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  ~-

|

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financia! reporting may not prevent or
detect mlsstatements Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may detenorate

b

Management has completed an assessment of TrustCo Bank Corp NY s internal control over
financial rlepomng as of December 31, 2006. In making this assessment, we used the criteria set
forth by the “Internal Control - Integrated Framework” promulgated by the Commlttee of
Sponsormg Organizations of the Treadway Commission, commonly:referred to as the “COS0O”
criteria. Based on our assessment, we believe that, as of December 31, 2008, the Company
maintainéd effective internal control over financial reporting. ‘

Management s assessment of the effectiveness of TrustCo Bank Corp NY's mterniﬂ control over

financial repomng and the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over ﬂnancral reporting

as of December 31, 2006 has been audited by KPMG LLP, the Company S mdependent registered

public aCcountlng firm, as stated in their attestation report which is mcluded herelnI
|'

]

/Z//Z/ R7 Cde, ///,,a,;;

Robert Jl..McCormick " RobertT. Cushing Scot R. Salvador
President and Executive Vice President and Executlve V|ce Pre5|dent and

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer ph|ef Banking ithcer

February 27, 2007
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
TrustCo Bank Corp NY:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting, that TrustCo Bank Corp NY (the Company) maintained effective internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Infernal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission {COS0). The Company s management is responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reperting. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {(United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an
understanding of internal contral aver financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the
design and operating effecliveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances, We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and {3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a materiai effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorzte.

In our opinion, management's assessment that TrustCo Bank Corp NY maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 20086, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in Internal Controf —
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Also,

in aur apinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal contral over financial reparting as of
December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States),
the consolidated statements of condition of TrustCo Bank Corp NY and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 anfd 2005, and
the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2006, and our report dated February 27, 2007, expressed an unqualified opinion on
those consolidated financial statements.

KPMes LEP

Albany, New York
February 27, 2007
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Report of Independent Registered Public A'ccountmg Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders f l
TrustCo Bank Corp NY: !

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of condition of TrustCo Bank Corp NY and sub5|d|ar|es (the
Company) as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in
shareholders’ equnty, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006 These
consolidated flnanrlal statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsm:hty, is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. !

We conducted our audlts in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statemems are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, ewdence supporting the
amounts and dlsclosures in the financial statements. An audit alse includes assessing the accounting pnnmples used and
significant estlmates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentatnon We believe
that our audits prcwtde a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the r‘onsohdated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all'material respectsf the financial
position of TrustCo Bank Corp NY and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of thelr operations
and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles. |

+
As discussedin Nole 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statemem of Fmancuai Accounting
Standards No. 158, “Employer’'s Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of
FASB Statements No 87, 88, 106 and 132(A)" as of December 31, 2006, and Staff Accounting Bulletin No. IJ 08 “Considering
the Effects of Prior,Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Fmancra! Statements” as of
January 1, 2006. ‘

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Acc0untiﬁg Qversight Board (United States),
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria
established in Intemal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsonng Orgamzatlons of the Treadway
Commission (COS_O) and our report dated February 27, 2007, expressed an unqualified opinion on menag'ément’ ’
assessment of, and the efiective operation of, internal control over financial reporting. J

f
|
'
1
1
l
[
|
|
1
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Albany, New York
February 27, 2007
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Consolidated Statements of Income

{doliars in thousands, except per share data) Years £Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Interest income:
Interest and feeS ON I0ANS . . ... .. . i e e e $104,400 86,636 75,184
Interest and dividends on:
U.S. Treasuries and agencies and government sponsored enterprises ... .... 40,858 34,506 38,795
States and political subdivisions . ......... .. ... .. . o 5,762 6,301 8,666
Mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations . ... .. ... 8,661 9,738 7,032
L 5 7= 614 984 1,424
Interest on federal funds sold and other short-term investments . .............. 8,912 12,009 6,675
Tota!l INterest iNCOME . .\t ottt e et e e e 169,207 150,174 138,786
Interest expense: '
Interast ON depoSitS ... ...t e 67,228 43,626 37,777
Interest on short-term borrowings .. ... ... o i 3,708 2,026 972
Intereston long<termdebt . . ... ... . 4 5 8
Total interest EXpenSe . ... .. . e 70,940 45,657 38,757
Netinterestincome ........ ... ... i iierron. e 98,267 104,531 7 100,029
Provision (credity forloan losses . . ... ... e e {3,575) (6,260} 450
Net interest income after provision (credit) forloan losses . ............ .. 101,842 110,777 99,579
Noninterest income:
Trust department iNCOME . . ... i i 5,463 6,009 5,869
Fees for services to CUSIOMBIS . . ... .. i e 8,572 8,171 10,486
Net (loss) gain on securities transactions .......... ..o i (596) 5,999 13,712
01 o 1,420 5,110 1,898
 Total NORIMEIESt INCOME . .\ttt e 14,859 25,289 31,965
Noninterest expense: '
Salaries and employee benefits . .. ... ... .o 18,427 18.663 20,697
Net oCCupancy eXpPensSe . . . . . ... ... e 7,947 7,308 6,601
EQUIPMENt BXPENSE . . . .. oot 3,042 2,721 2,283
Professional Services . ... .. ... e 3,925 3,372 3,685
OULSOUNCE SOIVICES . ... . it e e et 4,246 4,093 4,348
Advertising eXPENSE . . ...t 2,277 1,415 1,367
Other real estate expense {income), net ......... ... i 27 817) (739)
(2= 9,171 9,277 9,923
Total noninterest eXPeNSe .. ... oo e 49,062 46,é32 48,165
INCOME DEfOre INCOME LAXES . - .« o\ ot s e e e e e e e e e 67,639 89,834 83,379
IO LY . . ot ittt ettt e e e e e 22,314 30,845 26,839
LY Qoo 117 N P *$ 45,325 58,989 56,540
Earnings per share:
BaASIE . .. e e e $ .605 787 761
[ 1=« P .603 .782 753

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Condition
f
(dollars in thousands, except per share data) ! As of December 31,
; 2006 || 2005
; -
ASSETS ; "
Cashandduefrombanks......... ... ..o i . % 47,889 ‘ 55,667
Federal funds sold and other short-terminvestments . ............................. 243,449 | 257,196
Tolalcashandcashequivalents . . .......oo i e iaas X 291,338 | 312,863
Securities availableHor sale. . ... ... ... . 1,048,270 ’ 1,084,076
LoaNS, MEL . . e e e e . 1,762,514 1,470,719
Less: Allowance {or 10an 10SS8eS. . . . ..o i e e . 35,616 II 45,377
Net l0ans . .. e 1,726,898 | 1,425,342
Bank premises andlequipment . .. ... e 24,050 | 21,734
OHNEr 858015 . . .. . o e e ‘70,631 | 68,744
STotal @SSetS). .. .. D, . $3,161,187 || 2,912,759
|
|
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Deposits: :
Demand. ... .. e e e $ 259,401 251,012
SaVINGS . . . i 662,310 725,336
Interest bearing checkingaccounts. ............. ... o 290,784 ’ 309,668
Money market dqposil ACCOMIES L . .t e e 310,719 190,560
Certificates of deposit {in denominations of $100,0000rmore) ................... e 299,813 225,611
Other time accou;nts .................................................... v 976,356 | 860,300
Totatdeposits ......... ... . 2,799,383 h 2,562,487
SO I DO OWINIgS . . . o e e L 95,507 87,935
Long-termdebt .. | ... ... e ; 59 87
Accrued expenses zland otherliabilities .. ....... ... .. . e ) 26,715 33,589
Total Iiabiliticlas ..................................................... 2,921,664 | 2,684,098
Shareholders’ equity: *
Capital stock; $1 'par value. 150,000,000 shares authorized, 82,149,776 and }

82,119,360 shares issued at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively . ........ [ 82,150 82,120
SUMIUS - . oo et e e ll 119,313 117,770
Undivided profits|. . ... ... .o e . 110,304 103,315

Accumulated other comprehensive loss, netoftax. .. .. .. ... ... ... ... ... .| (2,928) (6,054)
Treasury stock; 7\,276,450 and 7,343,783 shares, at cost, at December 31, 2006

and 2005, respectively. . .. ... e e g (69,316) (68,490)

Total Shareholders’ @QUILY . .. ... ...\ e et e e ! 239,523 || 228,661
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ......... .. oot inie s . $3,161,187 || 2,912,759
|
|
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 3
|
I
|
: !
‘ i
!
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

{dollars in thousands, except per share data) Three Years Ended December 31, 2006

Accurnulated
Other  Compre-

Capital Undivided Comprehensive  hensive  Treasury
Stock  Surplus Profits  ncome (Loss)  Income Stock Total
Beginning balance, January 1,2004 ..................... $ 80711 103611 78,051 21,042 (56,653) 226,762
Comprehensive income:
Netincome — 2004 ... .. ... ... . i — — 56,540 — 56,540 — 56,540
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax: '
Unrealized net holding loss arising during the year,
net of tax (pre-tax loss $13,868) ................... .. — — — —_ {8,335) = —
Raclassification adjustment for net gain realized
in net income during the year (pre-tax gain $13,712) . ... — — - S - {8.248) — —
Other comprehensive 0SS . . . ... oovveeeree e — — — . (15,583) (16,583) —  (16,583)
Comprenensive inCOME . .. ........uveureeeeeoaannn, L 39,957
Cash dividend declared, $.600 pershare................... — — (44,573) = —  (44,573)
Stock options exercised and related tax benefits . ............ 1,017 8,264 — o= . .- 9,281
Treasury stock purchased (1,021,397 shares) . .............. — —_ — P {(13,482) (13,482)
Sale of treasury stock (598,732 shares) . .................. — 2,343 — V- : 5,544 7,887
Ending balance, December 31,2004 ... ... P 81,728 114218 80,018 _g5,459 (64,591) 225,832
Comprehensive income &
Netincome —2005:. . ... .ooovi e - — 58989 & — 58989 — 58989
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax; - o
Unrealized net holding loss arising during the year,
net of tax (pre-tax loss of $11,487) . ....... ... .. .. — — — — (6,905) — —
Reclassification adjustment for net gain realized _
in net income during the year (pre-tax gain $5,999) . ... .. — —_ — - — {3,608) —_ —
| Other comprehensive loss. .. ...............oo il — — — (10,513)  (10,513) — (10,513
L COMPrehensive iNCOME . .. .. ..\ e e e et e T 48476
Cash dividend declared, $.610pershare................... — - (45,692} — —  (45,692)
Stock options exercised and related tax benefits .. 7...... . ... 392 3,426 — — — 3818
| Non-cash stock based compensation expense, netoftax .. .. .. — 77 — _ - 77
| Treasury stock purchased {1,172,366 shares) . . ............. -— — — _ (14,846) (14,846)
| Sale of treasury stock (1,016,367 shares).................. — 49 — — 10,947 10,996
Ending balance, December 31,2005...................... 82120 117770 103,315 {6,054) (68,490) 228,661
Adjustment to January 1, 2006 beginning balance for
adoption of SAB No. 108 . ................. S — — 9,571 - — 9,571
January 1, 2006 beginning balance, as adjusted . ............ 82,120 117,770 112,886 {6,054) (68,490) 238,232
Comprehensive income:
Netincome — 2006 . ... ....cnrrriiiiaiinaans — — 45,325 —  _45,32% ‘- 45,325
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax:
Previously unrecognized overfunded position in pension
and post retirement benefit plans, net of tax :
{pre-tax overfunded of $12,096) . ... ............... .. — - — 7,272 — - 1,272
Unrealized net holding loss arising during the year,
net of lax (pre-tax loss $7,492) ...................... - —_ — — (4,504) - —
Reclassification adjustment for net loss realized
in net income during the year (pre-tax loss $596). ....... — - — — 358 L— —
Other comprehensive 108S . ... . ... ocoveereeeeinn.n. - - - (4,146) _ (4,146) —  (4.148)
Comprenensive iNCOME . . . ......uuvenveeerio e 1,179
Cash dividend declared, $.640pershare. ............... ... — —  (47,907) —_ ' — . (47,907)
Stock options exercised and related tax benefits .. ........... 30 554 — — — 584
Treasury stock purchased (733,413 shares) ................ —_ —_ — — . (8,801) (8,801)
Sale of treasury stock (800,746 shares) ................... — 989 - ) — 7,975 8,964
Ending balance, December 31,2006............ ceee $ 82,150 119,313 110,304 (2,928) (69,316) 239,523
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Bank Cop NY
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
|
(dollars in thousands) - e . Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ' f
Cash flows from operating activities: : ' I
Net income . . . .. : ............................................... $ 45325 58,989 56,540
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by ' '
operating actlwtles i |
Depreciation and amortization ... ... . 2,67 2,690 1,898
Net gain on sales of real estate OWNed .......................coun. {47) (690) (893)
Net loss/(gain) on sales of bank premises and equipment . ............ 131 (665) ) 55
(Credﬂ)!prow\,mn forfoantosses ......... ... .. e {3,575) - 16,260) 450
Deferred tax expense ......................................... 1,105 2,874 3,106
Net loss (gain) on securities transactions . . ........................ : 596 {5,999) (13,712)
Decrease/(increase) in taxesreceivable . ............ ... ......... 7,265 2,760 (2,424)
(Increase)/decrease ininterestreceivable ......................... {2,159) {3,761} ) -2,864
increase in interestpayable ................ oo 825 |659 75
Decrease/(lnc,rease) inotherassets . ............................. (4,313) ’ (5,289) 5,01
Increasef(decrease) inaccrued exXpenses ...............ovin., 561 (665) {8,037}
Total adjustmems ........................................ 3,060 (14!346) {(11,607) .
Net casﬁ provided by operating activities . . . .. .. P 48,385 44,643 44,933
Cash flows from investing activities: .
Proceeds from ,ales and calls of securities available forsale ... ......... 97,842 275!855 - 1,155,807
Proceeds from rpaturltles of securities available forsale .. .............. 25,786 172781 881
Purchases of securities availableforsale ........................... (95,314) (4771210) _ (889,618)
Net increase in Ioans ........................................... {290,581) _ (228'457) (77,604)
Proceeds from sales ofrealestateowned ........... ... ... ... ... 178 !723 ‘ B93
Proceeds from >ales of bank premises and equipment ... .............. 73 2,576 - 23
Purchases of be:nk premises andequipment .......... ... ... ... ... {5,191) (3'855) (4,287)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities . . ................... (267,207) (428,587) . 186,095
Cash flows from financing activities: o I{
Net increase in deposns ......................................... 236,896 35,385 107,292
Net increase (dpcrease) in short-term borrowings .............. ... .... 7,572 T 9,956 {12,629)
Repayment of I:)ng ermdebt ... i1{28) i[ (27} o {125} -
Proceeds from r-*xermse of stock options and related tax benefits ......... 584 ‘ 3,818 9,281 -
Proceeds from sales oftreasurystock ......... ... ... ... ... ... .. ... 8,964 10 996 7,887
Payments to acqmre treasury stock ... ... e (8,801) (14 846) (13,482) .
Dividends paid I ................................................ (47,890) (44,905) (44,504)
Net cash provided by financing activities . ........................... 197,297 4377 53720
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents ................... (21/525) (383,567) 284,748
Cash and cash equwalents atbeginningofyear ........................ 312,863 696,430 411,682
Cash and cash equwalents atendofyear ............ ..o . $ 291,338 312',863 696,430
] ' W
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION: : "
Cash paid during the year for: . "
Interest . ... 0 e $ 70,115 44,998 38,681
Income taxes 1 ................................................ 14,999 27 388 ) 24,038
Non cash transactlons ; -
Transfer of Ioans torealestateowned .......... .. ... ... ... .. .. ... i200 | 56 —
Increase in dlwdends payable ....... ... ... .. c 17 1787 69
Change in unreahzed loss on securities available for sale—gross ... ... (6,896) (17,486) (27,579)
Change in deferred tax effect on unrealized loss on securities i CoL
available for saie ............................................ 2,750 6,973 10,996
Non-cash stock based compensation expense, netoftax ............... f— | 77 —
Cumulative effect of the adoption of FASB Statement No 158 — Gross . . .. 12,096 —_ —
Deterred tax eﬁect of cumulative effect of the adoption of !
FASB Statement No.158 ........ e e (4,824) — .=
Cumulative effect of the adoption of SEC Staff Accounting | ’
Bulletin No. 108 —Gross . ... 15,875 — —
Deferred tax effect of the adoption of Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108 . ... .. (6,304) - —

See accompanying noles to consolidated financial statements. ) i -
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interest income over the applicable loan term.

TRUSTCO
Bank Corp NY *

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(1) Basis of Presentation

The accounting and financial reporting policies of
TrustCo Bank Corp NY (the Company or TrustCo),
ORE Subsidiary Corp., Trustco Bank (referred to as
Trustco Bank or the Bank), and its wholly owned
subsidiary, Trustco Vermont Investment Company, and
its subsidiary Trustco Realty Corporation conform to
general practices within the banking industry and are
in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles. A description of the more significant policies
follows. : :

The preparation of consolidated financial staternents
in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company include the accounts of the subsidiaries after
elimination of all significant intercompany accounts
and transactions.

Securities Available for Sale

Securities available for sale are carried at approximate
market value with any unrealized appreciation or
depreciation of value, net of tax, included as an element
of accumulated other comprehensive income or loss
in shareholders’ equity. Management maintains an
available for sale portfolio in order to provide maximum
flexibility in balance sheet management. The designation
of available for sale is made at the time of purchase
based upon management's intent to hold the securities for
an indefinite period of time. These securities, however, are
available for sale in response to changes in market inter-
est rates, related changes in liquidity needs, or changes
in the availability of and yield on alternative investments.
Unrealized losses on securities that reflect a decline in
value which is other than temporary, if any, are charged
to income. Nonmarketable equity securities (principally
stock of the Federal Reserve Bank and the Federal
Home Loan Bank, both of which are required holdings
for the Company) are included in securities available
for sale at cost since there is no readily available
market value.

The cost of debt securities available for sale is
adjusted for amortization of premium and accretion of
discount using the level yield method.

Gains and losses on the sale of securities available
for sale are based on the amortized cost of the specific
security sold at trade date.

Loans

Leans are carried at the principal amount outstanding
net of unearned income and unamortized loan fees
and costs, which are recognized as adjustments to

Nonperforming loans include nonaccrual loans,
restructured loans, and loans which are three payments
or more past due and still accruing interest. Generally,
loans are placed in nonaccrual status either due to the
delinquent status of principal and/or interest payments,
or a judgment by management that, although payments
of principal and/or interest are current, such action is
prudent. Future payments received on nonperforming
loans are recorded as interest income cr princtpal
reductions based upon management’s ultimate
expectation for collection. Loans may be removed
from nonaccrual status when they become current as
to principal and interest and have demonstrated a
sustained ability to make loan payments in accordance
with the contractual terms of the loan. Loans may
also be removed from nonaccrual status when, in the
opinion of management, the |oan is expected to be
fully collectable as to principal and interest.

Impaired loans have been defined as commercial
and commercial real estate loans in nonaccrual status
and restructured loans. Income recognition for
impaired loans is consistent with income recognition
for ngnaccruing loans.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a
level considered adequate by management to provide
for probable loan losses based on consideration of the
credit risk of the loan portfolio, including a review of
past experience, current economic conditions, and
underlying collateral value. The allowance is increased
by provisions charged against income, or decreased
by credits added to income, and reduced/increased by
net charge offs/recoveries.

In addition, various regulatory agencizss, as an
integral part of their examination process, periodically
review the Company’s allowance for loan losses.

Such agencies may require the Company to change
the allowance based on their judgments of information
available to them at the time of their examination._

Bank Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed
on either the straight-line or accelerated methods over
the remaining useful lives of the assets; generally 20
to 40 years for premises and leasehold improvements
and 3 to 7 years for furniture and equipment.

Real Estate Owned

Aeal estate owned are assets acquired through
foreclosures on loans.

Foreclosed assets held for sale are recorded on
an individual basis at the lower of (1) fair value minus
estimated costs to sell or (2} “cost” (which is the fair
value at initial foreclosure). When a property is acquired,
the excess of the loan balance over fair value is charged
to the allowance for loan losses. Subsequent write
downs and gains on sale are included in’ noninterest
expense.




Income Taxes

Deterred taxes are recorded for the future tax
consequences of events that have been recognized
in the financial statements or tax returns based upon
enacted tax laws and rates. Deferred tax assets are
recognized subject to management’s judgment that
realization is more likely than not.

Dividend Restrictions

Banking regulatlons restrict the amount of cash
dividends which rrnay be paid during a year by Trustco
Bank to the Company without the written consent of
the appropriate bank regulatory agency. Based on
these restrictions, |during 2007 Trustco Bank could
pay cash drvudends to the Company of $18.1 million
plus 2007 year -to-date net profits.

Benefit Plans

The Company has a defined benefit pension plan
covering substantrally all of its employees. The benefits
are based on years of service and the employee’s
compensation. This plan was frozen as of December
31, 2006.

The Company has a postretirement benefit plan
that permits retlrees under age 65 to participate in
the Company's madical plan by which retirees pay all
of their premrums‘At age 65, the Company provides
access to a Medicare Supplemental program for
retirees.

As of December 31, 2006 the Company adopted
Statement of Fmanmal Accounting Standards No. 158
“Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension
and Other Postretirement Plans” that required the
Company to recognize on the Statement of Condition
the funded status of the pension plan and post retire-
ment plan. This resulted in an increase in accumulated
other comprehens tve income of $7.3 million and an
increase in other assets of $12.1 million.

Stock Option Plans

The Company has stock option plans for officers and
directors. Effectwe January 1, 2006 the Company
adopted the prowsrons of FASB Statement No. 123R
(“Statement 123R") using the modified prospective
method. Previously the Company had adopted the
disclosure only provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation” (Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensatlon -Transaction and Disclosure”
{“Statement 148")

The Company s stock option plans were prewously
accounted for in accordance with the provisions of
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (‘APB
Opinion 25") and as such, no compensation expense
was ordinarily recorded for these plans.

TRUSTCO ‘ '
Bank Corp NY

Notes to Consolidated. Financial Stateme’nts (continued)

|
In the fourth quarter of 2005, the Board of Director's
of the Company approved the accelerated vesting of all
outstanding unvested stock option to jpurchase shares
of common stock. These options were previously
awarded to executive officers and employees under the
1995 and 2004 Stock Option Plans. By accelerating the
vesting of these options the Company estimates that
approximately $1.3 m|l||on of future compensatlon
expense, net of tax, was eliminated WhICh would have
been recorded under FAS 123R subsequent to its
adoption on January 1, 2006. The stock option acceler-
ations were done in anticipation of FAS 123R on
January 1, 2006. |
Optlons to purchase 882,100 shares of the
Company's common stock, which would otherwise
have vested from time to time over the next four years,
became immediately vested and exercrsable as a result
of this action. The number of sharesland exercise
prices of the options subject to the acceleratlon
remained unchanged. Also, all of the other terms of the
options remain the same. The Company recorded $127
thousand of expense related to this acceleratton based
upon an analysis performed in accordance with APB
Opinion 25. |
The accelerated optlons included 749,500 options
held by executive officers and 132 600 options held by
other employees Based upon the Company s closing
stock price of $12.76 per share on the date of acceler-
ated vesting certain of the options were below and
others above the closing market price as follows:
{

Grant Accelerated Exercise

Date Vesting Shares | Price

2005 411,200 ‘ { $12.15

2004 394 500 $13.55

2002 76,400 l $11.83
882, 100

The decision to accelerate the vesltang of these
options was made primarily to reduce non-cash
compensatlon expense that would have been recorded
in the statement of income in future penods upon the
adoption of FASB Statement No. 123R (Share-Based
Payment). :

Had compensatlon expense for 2005 and 2004 for
the Company’'s stock option plans been determined con-
sistent with Statement 123, the Companys net income
and earnings per share would have been as follows:
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ontinued)

(dollars in thousands,

except per share data) 2005 2004
Net income; }
Asreported ............ $ 58,989 56,540
Deduct; total stock-based

compensation expense,

Pro forma net income . . . . $ 56,954 55672

Earnings per share:

Basic —asreported ... ... $ 187 761
Basic—proforma ......., .760 .750
Diluted - as reported .. .. .782 753
Diluted — pro forma ... .. 755 742

|
net of related tax effects . . .. (2,035) {668)

The weighted average fair value of each option as
of the grant date, estimated using the Black-Scholes
pricing model, and calculated in accordance with
Statement 123 was as follows for options granted in
the year indicated:

Employees’  Directors’

Plan Plan

2005 .. ... $ 1675 1.480
2004 ... ... 2.080 1.870

The following assumptions were utilized in the
calculation of the fair value of the options under
Statement 123:

Employees’  Directors’
Plan Plan
Expected dividend yield:
2005 ... .. 4.95% 495
2004 ... 432 432
Risk-free interest rate:
2005 ... 391 376
2004 ... .. ... 3.89 3.71
Expected volatility rate
2005 ... ... 21.25 19.76
2004 ... .. .. 21.42 20.38
Expected lives, 2005 and 2004 .. C 75years  6.0years

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is computed by
dividing net income by the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted EPS is computed by dividing net income by the
weighted average number of common shares outstand-
ing during the period, taking into consideration the effect
of any dilutive stock opticns.

Reclassification of Prior Year Statements

It is the Company’s policy to reclassify prior year
consolidated financial statements to conform to the
current year presentation.

Segment Reporting

The Company's operations are exclusively in the
financial services industry and include the provision of
traditional banking services. Management evaluates

‘Cash and Cash Equivalents

the performance of the Company based on only one
business segment, that of community banking. The |
Company operates primarily in the geographical reg|on |
of Upstate New York with new Compcmy operations in |
Florida and the mid-Hudson valley region of New York, |
In the opinion of management, the Company does not |
have any other reportable segments as defined by
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131,
“Disclosure about Segments of an Enterprise and
Related Information”.

The Company classifies cash on hand, cash due
from banks, federal funds sold, and other short-term
investments as cash and cash equivalents for
disclosure purposes.

Trust Assets

Assets under management by the l'rust Department
are not included on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements because the Trust Department
holds these assets in a fiduciary capacity.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income represents the sum of net
income and items of other comprehensive income or
loss, which are reported directly in shareholders’
equity, net of tax, such as the change in net unrealized
gain or loss on securities available for sale and the
overfunded position of the pensicn and post retire-
ment benefit plans. The Company has reported
comprehensive income and its components in the
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’
Equity. Accumulated other comprehensive income or
loss, which is a component of shareholders’ equity,
represents the net unrealized gain or l0ss on securi-
ties available for sale, net of tax and the overfunded
position in the Company’s pension pidn and post
retirement benefit plans, net of tax not previously
recorded.

. {2). Adoption of New Accounting

Pronouncements

(a) Accounting for Defined Benem Pensaon and Other
Post Retirement Plans

In September 2008, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (*FASB") issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standard No. 158, Employers’
Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Post
Retirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements
No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R) (“Statement 158”). For
defined benefit and post retirement plans, Statement
158 requires that the funded status be recognized in
the statement of financial condition, that assets and
obligations that.determine funded staius be measured
as of the end of the employer’s fiscal year, and that
changes in funded status be measured as of the end
of the employer's fiscal year, and that changes in
funded status be recognized in comprehensive
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income in the year the changes occur. Statement

No. 158 does not|change the amount of net periodic
benefit cost included in net income or address
measurement issues related to defined benefit or post-
retirement plans. IT he requirement to recognize funded
status is effective, for fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2006 The requirement to measure
assets and obhgatlons as of the employer’s fiscal year
is effective for flsr,al years ending after December 15,
2008. The unrecognlzed overfunded pre-tax compo-
nents of the deflned benefit pension plan and the
retiree medical plan of $12.1 million were recorded on
the balance sheet at December 31, 2006. Balances
previously recognlzed in the fmanmal statements
were adjusted to reflect those overfunded positions
with the offset aslan adjustment to the deferred
income tax accounts and to accumulated other
comprehensive income, as an element of shareholder’s
equity.

(b) Prior Year immateriaf Uncorrected Misstatements

In September 2006, the Staff of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) issued Staff
Accounting Bul|et|n ("SAB") No. 108 “Considering the
Effects of prior Year Misstatements in Current Year
Financial Statem(,nts " SAB No. 108 requires quantifi-
cation of prior yectr immaterial uncorrected misstate-
ments under both the “rollover appreach” and the “iron
curtain approach.” The “rollover approach” quantifies a
misstatement based on the amount of the error origi-
nating in the curre,nt year income statement, but
ignores the effects of correcting the portion of the cur-
rent year balance sheet misstatement that originated in
prior years. The © tron curtain approach” quantifies a
misstatement bas.ed on the effects of correcting the
misstatement exi: ;tmg in the balance sheet at the end
of the current year irrespective of the misstatement's
year(s) of origination. Prior to SAB No. 108, the
Company utilized the rollover approach when quantify-
ing mlsstatements The provisions of SAB No. 108
must be applied to financial statements for fiscal years
ending after November 15, 2006. .

As a result of the adoption of SAB No. 108, TrustCo
recognized a reductlon in other {iabilities and a
decrease in the allowance for loan losses, as
described below.;These entries were recorded as
adjustments of the beginning of the year 2006 opening
balances for these accounts and the impact, net of tax,
was reflected in chareholders equity as a cumulative
effect adjustment to undivided profits, a component of
shareholders’ equny

TRUSTCO
Bank Corp NY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

The entries to reduce other fiabilities were in con-
nection with the following items:

Approximately $3.0 million of unused accrued inter-
est for potential tax settlements related to certain tax
positions, including the timing of foan’ charge offs for
tax return purposes, in connection with mergers in
1985 and 1991. |

Approximately $1.4 million in unused accrued
expenses related to the anticipated termination of a
computer services contract in the early 1990s.
Negotiations subsequently resolved the matter without
requiring full payment.

Approximately $2.0 million in unused accrued
expenses related to credit risk assocnated with unad-
vanced amounts on credit cards, not'reversed as this
portfolio was paid down. |

These mlsstatements were not matenal to the con-
solidated financial statements in each of the respective
years affected. !

The reduction of the allowance for Ioan losses was
the result of excess provisions for Ioan losses recorded
primarily in the 1980s. This mlsstatement primarily
occurred as a result of the Company’ s extrapolation of
historical loan loss expenence over the future
expected lives of the respective loan portfollos (also
known as “life of the loan” approach), and the
Company did not conS|der qualrtatwe factors which
impact credit quality. The mlsstatement of the provision
for loan losses was not considered matenal to the
Company’s consolidated financial statements inany of
the respective years impacted by these misstatements.

Under the rollover approach descrlbed above, man-
agement did not consmler these |tems to be matenal to
the consolidated financial statements However, under
the dual approach required by SAB No 108, these
items are being adjusted effective asof January 1,
20086.

In accordance W|th the transition provnsmns of SAB
No. 108, the Company recorded the cumulatlve effect
of these items as an adjustment to |ts opening undi-
vided profits for fiscal 2006, net of thelr respective tax
effects. :

(3) Balances at Other Banks
The Company is required to malntaln certain reserves
of vault cash and/or deposits with the'Federal Reserve
Bank. The amount of this reserve requnrement included
in cash and due from banks, was approxtmatety
$21.6 million and $20.5 million at December 31, 2006
and 2005, respectively.
|
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(4) Securities Available for Sale °
The amortized cost and market value of the
securities available for sale are as follows:

{dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2006

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains  Losses Value
U.S. Treasuries
and agencies . . .$ 999 - — 999
Government
sponsored
gnterprises ... 751,539 —  17,98¢ 733,549
States and political
subdivisions ... 129,633 3,524 217 132,880
Mortgage-backed .
securities and
collateralized
mortgage
obligations .... 170,450 336 2,890 167,896
Other........... 680 — 8 672
Total debt .
securities ... .. 1,053,301 3,860 21,165 1,035,996
Equity securities .. 11,933 KLY — 12,274
Total securities
available for
sale . ......... $1,065,234 4,201 21,165 1,048,270
(dollars in thousands) December 31, 2005
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. Treasuries .
and agencies ... $ 499 — 1 498
Government
sponsored :
enterprises .... 756,525 — 13,260 743,265
States and political
subdivisions ... 115,010 4143 203 118,950
Mortgage-backed
securities and
collateralized
mortgage
ohligations .... 202,007 593 1,637 200,963
Other........... 685 — 4 681
Total debt
securities ..... 1,074,726 4736 15,105 1,064,357
Equity securities .. 19,418 m - 19,719
Total securities
availabte for )
sale .......... $1,094,144 5,037 15105 1,084,076

Federal Home Loan Bank stock and Federal
Reserve Bank stock included in equity securities at
December 31, 2006 and 2005, was $5.1 million
and $4.7 million, respectively.

The following table distributes the debt securities
included in the available for sale portfolio as of
December 31, 2006, based on the securities’ final

maturity {mortgage-backed securities and collateral-
ized mortgage obligations are stated using an esti-
mated average fife):

(dollars in thousands) Amortized Fair
Cost Value

Dueinoneyearorless ............ $66,648 66,450
Due after one year through five years .. 350,083 345,905
Due after five years through ten years .. 70,748 69,753
Due aftertenyears ................ 565,822 553,888
$1,053,301 1,035,996

Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturi-
ties because of securities prepayments and the right
of centain issuers to call or prepay their obligations
without penalty.

Gross unrealized losses on investment securities
available for sale and the related fair values aggregated
by the length of time that individual securities have
been in an unrealized loss position, were as follows:

(dollars in thousands} December 31, 2006

Less than 12 months
12 months or mare Total
Gross Gross Gross
Fair  Unreal. Fair Unreal. Fair Unreal.
Value Loss  Value Loss  Value Loss
Government
sponsored

enterprises. . . . $50,878 121 668,675 17,869 719,553 7,990
States and political

subdivisions . . .. 12,444 65 19,379 M2 31,823 217
Mortgage-backed

securities and

collateralized

mortgage

obligations .. .. .. 16,930 132 126,956 2,758 143,886 2,890
Other.. .cccooeeeee - - 592 8 592 8
Total............. $80,252 318 B15,602 20,847 895,854 21,165

(dollars in thousands) December 31, 2005

Less than 12 months
12 months or more Total
Gross Gross Gross
Fair  Unreal. Fair Unreal. Fair Unreal.
Value Loss  Value Loss  Value Loss
U.5. Treasuries
and agencies.......5 498 1 —- - 498 1
Government
sponsored
gnterprises . . 653612 10,413 89,653 2,847 743,265 13,260
States and political
subdivisions . . . 18,024 156 2,808 47 20832 203
Mortgage-backed
securities and
collateralized
mortgage
obligations . ... .. 40,623 537 107,329 1,100 147,952 1,637
Other. . oo 596 4 —_ = 596 4
Total............ $713,353 11,111 199,790 3,994 913,143 15,105




U.S. Treasuries and agencies,Government sponsored
enterprises, and States and political subdivisions: The
unrealized Iosses on these investments were caused
by market mterest rate increases. The contractual
terms of these |n\.;estments require the issuer to settle
the securities at par upon maturity of the investment.
Because the Company has the ablllty and intent to hold
these investments until a market price recovery or pos-
sibly to maturity and the Company has no current intent
to sell these secuntles these investments are not con-
sidered other- than -temporarily impaired.

Mortgage- backed securities and collateralized
mortgage oblrgatrons The unrealized losses on invest-
ments in mortgage -hbacked securities and collateralized
mortgage obllgatnons were caused by market interest
rate increases. The contractual cash flows of these
securities or the underlymg leans are guaranteed by

various government agencies or government sponsored

enterprises. Because the decline in fair value is attribut-
able to changes i m market interest rates and not credit
quality, and because the Company has the ability and
intent to hold these investments until a market price

recovery or possmly to maturity and the Company has no

current intent to sell these securities, these investments
are not oonsrdered other-than-temporarily impaired.

The proceeds from sales and calls of securities, gross
realized gains and gross realized losses from sales
and calls during 2006, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

{dollars in thousands) December 31,
[ 2006 2005 2004

Proceeds ........1....... $97.842 275855 1,155,807
Gross realized gains [..... .. 55 6297 25,006
Gross realized losses|....... 651 298 11,294

The amount of(securities available for sale that
have been pledged to secure short-term borrowings
and for other purposes required by law amounted to
$138.5 million and $104.7 million at December 31,
2006 and 2005, respectively.

The Company has the following balances of
securities avarlable for sale as of December 31, 2006
that represent greater than 10% of shareholders equity:

Amortized Fair

Cost Value

Federal Home Loan Bank .......... $176,160 172,700

Federal National Mortgage Association . 137,038 134,166
Federal Home Loan |

Mortgage Corporation . ........... 235,781 228,836

TRUSTCO i
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(5) Loans and Al!owance for Loan Losses
A summary of loans by category is as follows:

I

(dollars in thousands) | | December 31,

| 2006 2005
Commercial ......... e $ 247,622 202,570
Real estate - construction . ........ 25,534 22,123
Real estate mortgage . !.......... 1,240,312 1,047,994
Home equity lines of credit .. ... .. 242,555 192,291
Instaltment loans .. ... T 16,491 5,741
Total loans, net ..., ... L 1,762,514 1,470,719
Less: Allowance for loan losses . ... 35,616 45,377
Netloans ........... S $1,726.898 1425342

t

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, Iloans to executive
officers, directors, and to assocrates of such persons
aggregated $2.4 million and $3.0 mlllron respectively.
During 2006, approximately $115 thousand of new
loans were made and repayments of loans totalled
approximately $740 thousand. In the! oplnlon of
management, such Ioans were made in the ordinary
course of business on substantlally the same terms,
including interest rates and cotlateral as those
prevailing at the time for comparable transactions.
These loans do not involve more than normal risk of
collectibility or present other untavorable features.

TrustCo lends prlmarlly in the Capltal District region
of New York State and in the geographrc territory
surrounding its borders, and to a Iesser extent, in
Florida and the mid-Hudson Valley reglon of New
York. Although the loan portfolio is dwersrfred a
portion of its debtors’ ability to repay depends
significantly on the economic conditions prevailing
in New York State.

The following table sets forth information with regard
to nonperforming loans: '

(dollars in thousands}) l

December 31,
2006;] 2005 2004
Loans in nonaccrual status ..~ $5,713 1,662 557

Loans contractually past due
3 payments or more and still
accruing interest .. .. .. 211 35 -
Restructured loans . .. .. ..., 1,189 |' 1,518 28610

Total nonperforming loans . . . $7.113 3,215 3,167

Interest on nonaccrual and restrsljctured loans of
$380 thousand in 2006, $250 thousand in 2005, and
$377 thousand in 2004 would have been earned in
accordance with the original contractual terms of the
loans. Approximately $149 thousand $201 thousand,
and $329 thousand of interest on nonaccrual and
restructured loans was collected and recognized as
income in 2008, 2005 and 2004, respectwely There
are no commitments to extend further credit on
nonaccrual or restructured loans. |

;
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Transactions in the allowance for loan losses account

are summarized as follows:

For the years ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

(doliars in thousandé)

Balance at beginning of year .. $45,377 49384 48,739
Adjustment upon adoption of

Staff Accounting Bulletin

No.108 ................ (7,600) — —
Adjusted balance at

beginningof year ......... anin 49384 48,739
Provision (credit) for loan losses  (3,575) (6,260} 450
Loanscharged off .......... (2,117) (2,464 (5797}
Recoveries on loans

previously charged off .. ... 3,531 4,717 5,992
Balance atyearend ......... $35,616 45377 49,384

The Company identifies impaired loans and measures
the impairment in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 114, “Accounting
by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan” (Statement 114),
as amended. A loan is considered impaired when it is
probable that the borrower will be unable to repay the
loan according to the original contractual terms of the
loan agreement or the loan is restructured in a troubled
debt restructuring. These standards are applicable
principally to commercial and commercial real estate
loans; however, certain provisions dealing with
restructured loans also apply to retail loan products.

There were no nonaccrual commercial and
commercial real estate loans classified as impaired
lcans at December 31, 2006 and 2005. Retail loans
totaling $1.2 million as of December 31, 2006, and
$1.5 million as of December 31, 2005, were restruc-
tured after the effective date of Statement 114 and,
accordingly, are identified as impaired loans. None of
the allowance for loan losses has been specifically
allocated to these retail loans.

During 2006, 2005, and 2004, the average balance
of impaired loans was $1.3 million, $1.9 million, and
$2.9 million, respectively, and there was approximately
$149 thousand, $201 thousand, and $314 thousand of
interest income recorded on these loans in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income.

(6) Bank Premises and Equipment
A summary of premises and equipment at
December 31, 2006 and 2005 follows:

{dollars in thousands) 2006 2005
Land ... $ 2,413 2,413
Buildings ........... ...l 24,372 23,208
Furniture, fixtures and equipment ... .... 27,395 25,231
Leasehold improvements .............. 7,663 6,467
.................................. 61,843 57,319

Accumulated depreciation and
amortization . ... o (37,793)

Total ... $24,050

(35,585)
21,734

Depreciation and amonrtization expense approximated
$2.7 million, $2.7 million, and $1.9 million for the years
2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively. Occupancy expense
of the Bank’s premises included rental expense of $3.1
million in 2006, $2.4 million in 2005, and $2.1 million in 2004,

(7) Deposits
Interest expense on deposits was as follows:

{dollars in thousands) For the years ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Interest bearing

checking accounts . . ..
Savings accounts . ... ...
Time deposits and

money market accounts” . 55,125

Total ... . $67,228

$1,303 1,376 1,586
. 10,800 6,769 7,968

28,223
37,177

35481
43626

At December 31, 2006, the maturity of total time
deposits is as follows:

{dollars in thousands) — .

Undertyear ............ IR $ 704,084
1to2years ............. e 276,012
2103 YRaIS .. . 110,511
3104Years ... ... 81,444
A0DYEAMS ... e 11,805
OVerByears . ... .. ...t 2,313

$1,276,169

(8) Short-Term Borrowings
Short-term borrowings of the Company were cash
management accounts as follows:

{dollars in thousands) 2006 2005
Amount outstanding at )
December31, ........... ... ... $95,507 87,935

Maximum amount
outstanding at any

monthend..................... 95,638 87,935
Average amount

outstanding ............ ... ... 95,239 - 83,381
Weighted average interest rate:

Fortheyear .................... 3.89 2.43

Asofyearend .................. 4.15 332

Cash management accounts represent retail deposits
with customers for which the Bank has pledged certain
assets as collateral.

Trustco also has an available line of credit with the
Federal Home Loan Bank which approximates the
balance of securities pledged against such borrowings.

(9) Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt at December 31, 2006 and 2005, of
$59 thousand and $87 thousand consisted of a FHLB
term loan with an interest rate of 5.22% maturing in
2008. This debt was assumed as part of an acquisition
during 2000. The FHLB loan is collaterélized by
approximately $500 thousand in deposits at the FHLB.




(10) Income Taxes
A summary of i mcome tax expense/(benefit) included
in the Consolidated Statements of Income follows:

For the years ended December 31,
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(doliars in thousands) 2006 2005 2004
Current tax expense:
Federal .........0....... $20,607 26,161 23,337
State .......... Ii ....... 602 1,810 396
Total current tax expense . . . .. 21,209 27,971 23,733
Deferred tax expense : ....... 1,108 2,874 3,106
Total income tax expense . . . .. $22,314 30,845 26,838

The tax effects of temporary differences that give
rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2006 and
2005, are as follows:

December 31,

(doltars in thousands) 2006 2005

" Deductible Deductible
temporary temporary
differences differences

Benefits and deferred

remuneration ... L $ (69) 460
Deterred {oan fees, nelt .............. 18 15
Ditference in reporting the

allowance for loan losses, net . ... .. 17,400 21,676
Other income or expense

not yet reported for, tax purposes . 2,523 5,254
Depreciableassets ..l............... 2,083 2,253
Otheritems .......|............... 849 555
Net deferred tax assel

atendofyear ...l ... .......... 22,804 30,213
Net deferred tax assel

at beginning of year .............. 30,213 33,087
Implementation of new accounting

standard (Staff Accounting Bulletin

No.108) .......0............... 6,304 —
Adjusted net deferreditax asset at

beginning ofyear !. . ............. 23,909 33,087
Deferred tax expensei............... $ 1,105 2874

Deferred tax assets are recognized subject to
management’s ]udgment that realization is more likely
than not. Based prrmanly on the sufficiency of historical
and expected future taxable income, management
believes it is more likely than not that the remaining
deferred tax asset of $22.8 miltion and $30.2 million
at December 31,/2006 and 2005, respectively, will
be realized.

In addition to the deferred tax items described in
the preceding table, the Company has a deferred tax
asset of $6.8 mlllron and $4.0 millicn at December 31,
2006 and 2005, respectlvely, relating to the net
unrealized Iosses, on securities available for sale
ang a deferred tax liability at December 31, 2006 of
$4.8 million as a result of the previously unrecognized
overfunded posmon in the Company’s pensicn and post
retirement benefii plans. This deferred tax liability

v

resulted from the adoption of SFAS No. 1568 in 2006,
there was no such deferred tax liability as of
December 31, 2005. |

The eﬂ‘ectrve tax rates differ from the statutory federal
income tax rate. The reasons for the'zse differences are

as follows:
For the years ended
l i December 31,

| 2006 § 2005 2004
Statutory federal income-tax rate. . 35.0% 35.0 350

Increase/(decrease) in taxes
resulting from;

Tax exempt income .« ... ... (2.7)| (2.3) {3.5)
State income tax, net of

federal tax benefit ......... 0.8 | 1.7 08
Otheritems . ... .. Lo oo o (0.1)

Effective income tax rate’. . ... ... 33.0% 34.3 32.2

(11) Benefit Plans
(a) Betirement Plan
The Company maintains a trusteed non-coniributory
pension plan coverrng employees that have completed
one year of employment and 1,000 hours of service.
The benefits are based on the sum of (a) a benefit
equal to a prior service benefit plu5|the average of the
employees highest five consecutave years’ compensa-
tion in the ten years preceding retlrement multiplied by
a percentage of service after a specmed date plus
(b) a benefit based upon career average compensation.
The amounts contributed to the plan are determined
annually on the basis of (a) the maxrmum amount that
can be deducted for tederal income!tax purposes or
(c) the amount certified by a consultlng actuary as
necessary to avoid an accumulated’ ‘funding deficiency
as deffned by the Employee Retrrement Income
Security Act of 1974. Contributions' are intended to
provide for benefits attributed to servrce to date. During
2006, the Company determined that the pension plan
would be frozen as of December 31I 2006 and that no
additional benefit to employees would be accrued. As a
result of this action the Company recognrzed anet
curtailment gain of $372 thousand durmg 2006. Assets
of the plan are administered by Trustco Bank’s Trust
Department. The following tables set forth the plan’'s
funded status as of a December 31 measurement date
and amounts recognized in the Company s consoli-
dated statements of condition at December 31, 2006
and 2005.

Change in Projected Benefit Obligation:

(doflars in thousands) 2006 2005
Projected benefit obligation

atbeginning of year . :........... ... $28,542 27,581
Servicecost ......... ..ol | . 132 804
Interestcost......... ..., 1,478 1,519
Benefitspaid ....................... ! (1,733) {1,567)
Net actuarial (gaimy loss | ............. l (54) 205
Tota! etfect trom curtailment ........... (2,794) —
Projected benefit obligation

atendof year ..., .. . ... |l $26,171
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Change in Plan Assets and
Reconciliation of Funded Status:

(dollars in thousands) 2006 2005
Fair value of plan assets at

beginming ofyear . ................. $28,998 29,242
Actual gainon planassets ............. 3,509 1,323
Benefitspaid ....................... (1,733) (1,567)
Fair value of plan assets atend ofyear ... 30,774 28,948
Fundedstatus ...................... 4,603 457
Unrecognized net actuarial (gain) loss . .. (1,852) 746
Unrecognized prior servicecost ........ - 1,595
Netamount ........................ 2,791 2,798
Adjustment to overfunded position of plan

assets for adoption of SFAS No. 158 .. 1,862 —
Overfunded position ................. $ 4,603 2,798

The accumulated benefit obligation for the plan was
$26.2 million and $25.8 million at December 31, 2006
and 2005, respectively.

Components of Net Periodic Pension Expense:
For the years ended

December 31,

(dollars in thousands} 2006 2005 2004
Service COSt «..viviiie e $ 732 804 784
Interestcost ...t 1,478 1519 1499
Expected return on planassets ........ (1,856) (1,850) (1,669)
Amortization of unrecognized

prior servicecost ................. 65 106 90
Curtailment gain, net ................ (372) — —
Net periodic pension expense ......... $ 47 579 704

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected
future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid:

(dollars in thousands})

Year Pension Benefits
2007 e r et $1,538
2008...... o 1519
2009...... 1,496
P00 1 SO PO RUROT RO 1,503
20T et et 1,519
2012 = 2016 eansseeeeenne. 3,027

The assumptions used to determine benefit obligations
at December 31 are as follows:

2006 2005
Discountrate ... 5.90% 5.50
Rate of increase in future compensation ........ N.A. 4.00

The assumptions used to determine net periodic
pension expense for the years ended December 31
are as follows:

2006 2005 2004

Discountrate .................. 5.50% 575 6.00
Rate of increase in future

compensation ............... 4.00 4.50 5.00
Expected long-term rate of return

onassets ................... 6.50 6.50 6.00

The Company also has a supplementary pension plan
under which additional retirement benefits are accrued
for eligible executive officers. The expense recorded
for this plan was $427 thousand, $581 thousand, and
$662 thousand, in 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.
This plan supplements the defined beneflt retirament
plan for eligible employees that are negatwely aftected
by the Internal Revenue Service limit on the amount of
pension payments that are allowed frorn a retirement
plan. The supplemental plan provides ehg|b1e employees
with total benefit payments as calculated by the retire-
ment plan without regard to this limitation. Benefits
under this plan are calculated using the same actuarial
assumptions and interest rates as used for the retire-
ment plan calculations. The accumulated benefits
under this supplementary pension plan'was approxi-
mately $4.7 million as of December 31, 2006.

Rabbi trusts have been established for certain benefit
plans. These trust accounts are administered by the
Company’s Trust Department and invest primarily in
money market instruments. These assets are recorded
at their market value and are included as other assets
in the Consolidated Statements of Condition. As of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, the trusts had assets
totaling $6.4 million and $5.7 million, respectively.

{b) Postretirement Benefits

The Company permits retirees under age 65 to
participate in the Company’s medical plan by making
certain payments. At age 65, the Bank provides a
Medicare Supplemental program to retirees.

In 2003, the Company amended the mechcal plan
to reflect changes to the retiree medlcal insurance
coverage portion. The Company s sub5|dy of the retiree
medical insurance premiums has been eliminated. The
Company continues to provide postretirement medical
benefits for a limited number of retired executives in
accordance with their employment contracts.

The following tables show the plan’s funded status
as of a December 31 measurement dat2 and amounts
recognized in the Company’s Consolidated Statements
of Condition at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Change in Accumulated Benefit Obligation:

(dollars in thousands) 2006 2005
Accumulated benefit obligation

at beginningofyear . .............. $1,272 891
Servicecost .. ... ... 30 35
Retiree contributions .. .............. 28 176
Interestcost ...................... 583 65
Benefitspaid ...................... (109) (221)
Net actuarial (gain) loss .. ............ (243) 326
Accumulated benefit abligation

atendofyear ................... $1,031 1,272




Change in Plan Assets and
Reconciliation of Funded Status:

(dollars in thousands) ’ 2006 2005
Fair value of plan assets at

beginning of year . J................ $12,172 11,726
Actual gainon planassets ............. 1,435 491
Retiree contributions J................ 28 176
Benefitspaid ......0................ (109) (221)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year ... 13,526 12,172
Fundedstatus ......0............... 12,495 10,901
Unrecognized net actuarial gain ...... .. (3,867) (2,680)
Unrecognized prior service credit .. .. ... {6,376) (6,780}
Netamount .. ... . 5.......... .. ... 2,252 1,449
Adjustment to overfuntied position of plan

assets for adoption 0f SFAS No. 158 . 10,244 —

Overfunded position $12,496 1,441

Components of Net Periodic Benefit:

For the years ended
December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2006 2005 2004
Servicecost ...... . 0L $ 30 35 12
Interest cost . .... .. L 53 65 31
Expected return on ptan assets ........ (4D2) (405) (428)
Amortization of net actuanal gain....... (88) (75) (107)
Amortization of prior service credit .. ... (403) (403} (403)
Net periodic berefit . 1...... ... ..., $(810) (783) (B895)

Expected Future Benefit Payments
The following benefit payments are expected to be paid:

Year Postretirement Benefits
2007 oo, [ $ 37
2008, e 38
2009....... oo D e 39
2010, L e 40
201, L e 41
2012 - 2016.......... 224

The discount rale assumption used to determine benefit
obligations at December 31 is as follows:

2006 2005
5.50% 5.50
The assumptions used to determine net periodic

pension benefit for the years ended December 31 are
as follows:

Discountrate .......L.............. e

2006 2005 2004

Discountrate ......L........... 5.50% - 575 6.00
Expected tong-term rate of return
onassets, netoftax ........... 3.30 345 3.80

For measurement purposes, a graded annual rate
of increase in the per capita cost of covered benefits
(i-e., health care cost trend rate) was assumed for
2006 and thereafter. Due to the plan amendment

|
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1

recognized in 2003 relatlng to the reimbursed portion
of the retiree's medical insurance premlums aone
percentage point increase or decrease in the assumed
health care cost in each year would have a negligible
impact on the accumulated postrehrement benefit
obligation as of December 31, 2006, and the interest
and service components of net penodlc postretirement
benefit cost for the year ended December 31, 2006.

(c) Major Categones of Pension and Postretirement
Benefit Plan Assets:

The asset allocations of the Company $ pension
and postretirement benefit plans at December 31,
were as follows: i l

Pension Benefit Postretirement Benefit
Plan Assets || Plan Assets

2006 2005 I} 2006 2005

28.05% 33.00| 28.74 30.72

Debt Securities. . .. ..

Equity Securities. . . . . 69.80 64.37 l! 67.37 64.01
Other ............. 2.15 263 | 3.89 5.27
Total 1I][l 00% . 100.00 | 100.00 100.00

The expected |ong -term rate-of- relturn on plan assets,
noted in sections (a) and (b) above|reflects long-term
earnings expectations on existing plan assets. In
estimating that rate, appropriate consaderatlon was given
to historical returns earned by plan assets and the rates
of return expected to be available forl reinvestment. Rates
of return were adjusted to reflect current capital market
assumptions and changes in investment allocations.

The Company s investment poI|C|es and strategies
for the pension benefit and postretnrement benefit plans
prescribe a target allocation of 60% ,to 70% equity
securities and 30% to 40% debt secuntles for the asset
categories. The Company S mvestment goals are to
maximize returns subject to specmc risk management
paolicies. Its risk management pohmes permit direct
investments in equity and debt secuntles and mutual
funds while prohibiting direct mvestment in derivative
financial mstruments The Company addresses
diversification by the use of mutual fund investments
whose underlying investments are in domestic and
international debt and equity secuntles These mutual
funds are readily marketable and can be sold to fund
benefit payment obligations as they become payable.

The Company does not expect to make any
contributions to its pension and postretlrement beneflt
plans in 2007. '

{d) Incentive and Bonus Plans
During 2006 the Company amended its profit sharing
plan to include a 401(Kk) feature. Under the 401(k} -
feature the Company matches 100% of the aggregate
salary contribution up to the first 3% of compensation
and 50% of the aggregate contnbutlon of the next 3%.
No profit sharing contribution was made in 2006 but
was replaced with Company contnbutlons to the 401k
feature of the plan. Expenses related to the plan
aggregated $234.8 thousand for 20'(|)6 and $1.3 million

in 2005 and 2004.
u
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The Company aiso has an executive incentive plan.
The expense of this plan is based on the Company’s
performance and estimated distributions to participants
are accrued during the year and generally paid in the
following year. The expense recorded for this plan was
$1.5 million, $2.0 million and $2.1 million in 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively.

The Company has awarded 2.7 million performance

bonus units to the executive officers and directors. These
units become vested and exercisable only under a change

of control as defined in the plan. The units were awarded
based upon the stock price at the time of grant and, if
exercised under a change of control, allow the holder
to receive the increase in value offered in the exchange
over the stock price at the date of grant for each unit.

(e) Stock Option Plans
Under the 2004 TrustCo Bank Corp NY Stock Option
Plan, the Company may grant options to its eligible

employees for up to approximately 2.0 million shares of

common stock. Under the 1995 TrustCo Bank Corp NY
Stock Option Plan, the Company could have granted

options to its eligible employees for up to approximately

7.9 million shares of common stock. Under the 2004
Directors Stock Option Plan, the Company could have
granted options to its directors for up to approximately
200 thousand shares of its common stock. Under the
1993 Directors Stock Option Plan, the Company could
have granted options to its directors for up to approxi-
mately 531 thousand shares of its common stock. The
Company has approximately 1.2 million options available
to be granted as of December 31, 2006.

Under each of these plans, the exercise price of each
option equals the market price of the Company's stock
on the date of grant, and an option's maximum term is

ten years. Options vest over four years from the date the
options are granted for the employees plans and they are

immediately vested under the directors’ plan. A summary
of the status of TrustCao’s stock option plans as of
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, and changes
during the years then ended, are as follows:

Outstanding Qptions  Exercisable Options

Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Option Option

Shares  Price  Shares  Price

Balance, January 1,2004 ... 4,940,202 $8.97 4402120 $874
New options awarded - 2004 677500 1355 145100 13.55

Cancelled options - 2004 . . .. (28,987) 10.38 (28,987) 10.38
Exercised options - 2004 . ... (1,143,605) 7.63 (1,143,605 7.63
Options became exercisable . — — 333394 1083

Balance, December 31,2004 . 4,445,110 1000 3708022 942
New options awarded - 2005 . 526,000 1215 114800 1215

Cancelled options - 2005 .. .. {12,000} 1355 (12,000) 13.55
Exercised options - 2005 ....  (781,061) 6.87 (v81.061) 6.87
Options became exercisable . —_ — 1,148,288 1265

Balance, December 31,2005 . 4,178,049 10.85 4,178,049 10.85
New options awarded - 2006 . — — - -
Cancelled options - 2006 . . .. (26,250) 12.86 (26,250) 12.86
Exercised options - 2006 . . .. (95,133) 6.14 (95133) 6.14
Options became exercisable . — —_— — —

.Balance. December 31, 2006 . 4,056,666 10.95 4,056,666 10.95
44

The following table summarizes information about
total stock options outstanding and exercisable at
December 31, 2006:

Weighted
Average Weighted

Range of Options Remaining Average
Exercise Outstanding Contractual Exercise
Price and Exercisable Life Price
Less than

$750 ... 13,076 1.0 years 5.97
Between $7.51

and $10.00. .. .. 2,125,340 3.7 years 9.58
Greater than

$1000 ....... 1,918,250 7.5 years 12.50
Total ............ 4,056,666 5.5 years 10.95

As described in Note 1, the Company accelerated
all unvested options in 2005, accordingly there are no
unvested options as of December 31, 2006 and 2005.
The decision to accelerate the vesting of these options
was made primarily to reduce the non-cash compensa-
tion expense that would have been recorded in the
Company’s consolidated income statement in periods
subsequent to the adoption of SFAS 123R.

(12) Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

(a) Leases

The Bank leases certain barking premises. These
leases are accounted for as operating leases with
minimum rental commitments in the amounts presented
below. The majority of these leases contain options
to renew.

{dollars in thousands)

2007 e $ 3,385
2008 .. 3,320
2000 ... e 3.254
2010 e 3,225
2011 3.148
2012andafter .. ... .. 30,117

$46,449

(b) Litigation

Existing litigation arising in the normal course of
business is not expected to result in any material
loss to the Company.

{c) Qutsourced Services

During 2001, the Company contracted with third-
party service providers to perform certain banking
functions beginning 2002. The outsourced services
include data and item processing for the Bank and
trust operations. The service expense can vary based
upon volume and nature of transactions processed.

Qutsourced service expense was $4.2 million in 2006,

$4.1 million in 2005 and $4.3 million in 2004. The
Company is contractually obligated to pay these third-
party service providers approximately $4 million to
$5 million per year through 2013.




(13) Earnings Per Share
A reconciliahonlof the component parts of earnings
per share for 2006, 2005 and 2004 follows:

{dollars in thousands, Weighted
except per share data} Average Shares Per share
Income  Qutstanding Amounts

For the year ended
December 31, 2006:
Basic EPS:
Income available to
common shareholders ..., $45,325 74,904 $.605
Effect of Dilutive Securities:
Stock Options ....[..... — 245 (.002)

Dituted EPS ........[..... $45,325 75,143  $.603

For the year ended
December 31, 2005:
Basic EPS:
Income available to
common shareholders . ... $58,989 74,278 $.761
Effect of Dilutive Securities:
Stock Options ... .[...... — 469 (.005)

Diluted EPS .......[...... $58,989 75,397  §.782

For the year ended
December 31, 2004
Basic EPS:
Income available to
common shareholders . ...  $56,540 74,278 $.761
Effect of Dilutive Securities:
Stock Options ... .|...... - 803 {.008)

Diluted EPS ....... | ... .. $56,540 75,081 $.753

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the number
of antidulitive stock options excluded from diluted
earnings per share was approximately 1.9 million and
665 thousand, respectively.

(14) Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments
Loan commltmnnts to extend credit are agreements
tolendto a customer as long as there is no violation of
any condition establlshed in the contract. Commitments
generally have flxed expiration dates or other termination
clauses and may requnre a fee. Commitments some-
times expire w1thout being drawn upon. Therefore, the
total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent
future cash requurements These arrangements have
credit risk essentlally the same as that involved in
extending loans to customers and are subject to the
Bank’s normal credlt policies, including cbtaining
collateral. The Bank’s maximum exposure to credit loss
for loan commnments including unused lines of credit,
at December 31, ?006 and 2005, was $297.6 million
and $306.7 mlltlon respectively. Approximately 80%
and 75% of these commitments were for variable rate
products at the end of 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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Notes to Consolidated .Financia!l Statements (consinued)

The Company does not issue any'guarantees that
require liability-recognition or disclosure, other than
its standby letters of credit. The Company has issued
conditional commitments in the form of standby letters
of credit to guarantee payment on behalf of a customer
and guarantee the performance of a customer to a third
party. Standby letters of credit generally arise in
connection with lending relatlonshlps The credit risk
involved in issuing these mstruments is essentially the
same as that involved in extendingloans to customers.
Contingent obligations under standby letters of credit
totaled approximateély $4.3 million and $2.8 million at
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectnvely, and
represent the maximum potential future payments the
Company could be required to make Typically, these
instruments have terms of 12 months or less and
expire unused; therefore, the total amounts do not
necessarily represent future cash requtrements Each
customer is evaluated individually for creditworthiness
under the same underwriting standards used for
commitments to extend credit and on -balance sheet
instruments. Company policies govermng loan collateral
apply to standby letters of credit at the time of credit
extension. Loan-to-value ratios are generally consistent
with loan-to-value requirements for| other commercial
loans secured by similar types of collateral. The fair
value of the Company’s standby Ietters of credit at
December 31, 2006 and 2005 was |n51gnn‘|cant

No losses are anticipated as a result of loan
commitments or standby letters of Credit.

l

(15) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair values shown below represent manage-
ment’s estimates of values at whlch the variocus
types of financial mstruments could be exchanged in
transactions between willing, unrelated parties. They
do not necessarily represent amounts that would be
received or paid in actual transactions.

; I As of

(dollars in thousands) December 31, 2006
Carrying Fair
; | value Value
Financial assets: | I
Cash and cash equivalents ...... $ 291,338 291,338
Securities available for sale ... ... 1,048,270 1,048,270
loans ....................... 1,726,898 1,737,746
Accrued interest receivable ...... |20,591 20,59
Assets invested in trust account .. I 6,448 6,585
Financial liabilities:
Demand deposits ..J........... 259 401 259,401
Interest bearing deposits ... .. ... 2,539,082 2,539,982
Short-term borrowings ......... "95 507 95,507
Long-termdebt ...} ........... 59 59
Accrued interest payable ... ..... 3,029 3,029

‘ |
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As of
{dollars in thousands) December 31, 2005
Carrying Fair
Value Value
Financial assets: )
Cash and cash equivalents' .. .... $ 3128863 312,863
Securities available for sale . ... .. 1,084,076 1,084,076
Loans ........... ... ... ... 1,425342 1,462,679
Accrued interest receivable ... ... 18,432 18,432
Assets invested in trust account .. 5,679 5721
Financial liabilities;
Demand deposits  ............. 251,012 251,012
Interest bearing deposits ........ 2,311,475 - 2,311,475
Short-term borrowings ......... 87,935 87,935
Long-termdebt ......... ... ... ‘ 87 87
Accrued interest payable ........ 2,204 2,204

The specific estimation methods and assumptions
used can have a substantial impact on the resulting
fair values of financial instruments. Following is a brief
summary of the significant methods and assumptions
used in estimating fair values:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The carrying values of these financial instruments
approximate fair values.

Securities

Fair values for all securities portfolios are based
upon quoted market prices, where available. The
carrying value of certain local, unrated municipal
obligations was used as an approximation of fair value.

Loans

The fair values of all loans are estimated using
discounted cash flow analyses with discount rates equal
to the interest rates currently being offered for loans with
similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality.
Deposit Liabilities

The fair values disclosed for noninterest bearing
deposits, interest bearing checking accounts, savings
accounts, and money market accounts are, by definition,
equal to the amount payable on demand at the balance
sheet date. The carrying value of all variable rate
certificates of deposit approximates fair value. The fair
value of fixed rate certificates of deposit is estimated
using discounted cash flow analyses with discount
rates equal to the interest rates currently being offered
on certificates of similar size and remaining maturity.

Short-Term Borrowings, Long-Term Debt and
Other Financial Instruments

The fair value of all short-term borrowings, long-term
debt, and other financial instruments approximates the
carrying value.

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk

The Company is a party to financial instruments
with off-balance sheet risk. Such financial instruments
consist of commitments to extend financing and standby
letters of credit. If the commitments are exercised by
the prospective borrowers, these financial instruments

will become interest earning assets of the Company. If
the commitments expire, the Company retains any fees
paid by the prospective borrower. The fair value of
commitments is estimated based upon fees currently
charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into
consideration the remaining terms of the agreements
and the present creditworthiness of the borrower. For
fixed rate commitments, the fair value estimation takes
into consideration an interest rate risk factor. The fair
value of these off-balance sheet items approximates
the recorded amounts of the related fees, which are
considered to be immaterial.

The Company does not engage in activities involving
interest rate swaps, forward placement coniracts, or any
other instruments commenly referred 1o as derivatives.

(16) Regulatory Capital Requirements

Office of Thrift Supervision (OTS) capital regulations
require banks to maintain minimum levels of regulatory
capital. Under the regulations in effect at December 31,
2006 and 2005, Trustco Bank was required to maintain
a minimum tangible capital of 1.5% of adjusted total
assets, a minimum leverage ratio of core capital to
adjusted total assets of 4.00% and a minimum ratio
of total capital to risk weighted assets of 8.00%.

Federal banking regulations also establish a
framework for the classification of banks into five
categories: well capitalized, adequately capitalized,
under capitalized, significantly under capitalized, and
critically under capitalized. Generally, an institution is
considered well capitalized if it has a leverage capital
ratio of at least 5.0% (based on total adjusted quarterly
average assets), a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of at
least 6.0%, and a total risk-based capital ratio of at
teast 10.0%.

The foregoing capital ratios are based on specific
quantitative measures of assets, liabilities, and certain
off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory
accounting practices. Capital amounts and classifica-
tions are also subject to qualitative judgments by the
regulator about capital components, risk weighting
and other factors.

Management believes that as of December 31, 2006
and 2005, Trustco Bank met all capital adequacy
requirements to which it was subject. Further, the
most recent regulator notification categorized the
Bank as a well-capitalized institution. There have.
been no conditions or events singe that notification -
that management believes have changed the Bank's
capital classification.

Under its prompt corrective action regulations, the
OTS is required to take certain supervisory actions
(and may take additional discretionary actions) with
respect to an undercapitalized institution. Such actions
could have a direct material effect on an institution’s
financial statements. As stated above, the Bank has
been classified as well capitalized for regulatory
purposes, and therefore, these regulalions do not
apply. The following is a summary of actual capita!
amounts and ratios as of December 31, 2006 and
2005, for Trustco Bank:




(dotlars in thousands) As of Decemher 31, 2006

Amount Ratio
Leverage capital: ... '........... 228,114 7.25%
Tier 1 risk-based capttal: .......... 228,114 14.16
Total risk-based capital: . .......... 248,446 15.42

(dollars in thousands) As of December 31, 2005

Amount Ratio
Leverage capital: ....0........... $222,327 7.82%
Tier 1 risk-based capltal .......... 222,327 15.81
Total risk-based capital: . ... ... ... 240,244 17.09

The following is'a summary of actual capital amounts
and ratios as of December 231, 2006 and 2005 for
TrustCo on a consolidated basrs

(dollars in thousands} As of December 31, 2006

Amount Ratio
Leverage capital: .. .. P 241,898 1.67%
Tier 1 risk-based capital: .......... 241,898 14.88
Total risk-based capital: . .......... 262,409 16.14
{dollars in thousands) As of December 31, 2005

Amount Ratio
Leverage capital: .. .............. $234,162 8.04%
Tier 1 risk-based capital: .......... 234,162 16.58
Total risk-based capital: . .......... 252,160 17.85

(17) Pending Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2008, the FASB issued Statement of
Financial Accountrng Standard No. 157, Fair Value
Measurements (“SFAS 1577). This statement defines
fair value, establrshes a framework for measuring fair
value under generally accepted accounting principles
("“GAAP"), and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007, however, it is not expected to
have a material eftect on the Company’s financial
statements.

In February 2006, FASB issued SFAS No. 155,
“Accounting for Cértain Hybrid Financial Instruments,’
which eliminates the exemption from applying SFAS
133 to interests in!securitized financial assets so
that similar instruments are accounted for similarly
regardless of the torm of the instruments. SFAS 155
also allows the electlon of fair value measurement at
acquisition, at isstance, or when a previously
recognized fmancral instrument is subject tc a
remeasurement event Adoption is effective for all
financial mstruments acquired or issued after the
beginning of the flrst fiscal year that begins after
September 15, 2006 Early adoption is permitted. This
statement will be effectwe in 2007, however, it is not
expected to have a material effect on the Company’s
financial statements

In July 2006, FASB issued Financial Accounting
Standards Interpretatlon No. 48 (“FIN 487,

TRUSTCO
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“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”. FIN 48
clarifies the accountlng for uncertarnty in income taxes
recognized in an enterpnses fmanmal statements in
accordance with FASB Statement No 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes". FIN 48 prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attributable
for the financial statement recognmon and measure-
ment of a tax posutlon taken or expected to be taken in
a tax return. FIN 48 also provides gundance on
derecognttton classmcatton 1nterest and penalties,
accounting in mtenm periods, dlsclosures and transi-
tions. FIN 48 is effectwe for fiscal years beginning
after December 15) 2006. The Company is currently
analyzing the effects of FIN 48.

(18) Parent Comlpany Only
The following statements pertain to TrustCo Bank
Corp NY (Parent Company):

Statements of Income
(dollars in thousands) i Years|Ended December 31,

[ncome: 2006 2005 2004
Dividends and interest Il
from subsidiaries .|......... $49,144 37,733 19,403
Net gain on sales of securities . 21 4068 21157
Income from other investments . 219 13 424
Total income . . i ......... 49,385_1 41932 40,984
Expense: ) i
Operating supplies . ' ......... 12 67 61
Professional services | ........ 66 276 203
Miscellaneous expense ........ 163 277 8
Total expense . o 3n 620 349
Income before income |
taxes and subsidiarigs’ [
undistributed earnlngs ........ 49,083 41,312 40635
Income tax (benefit} expense . ... (14) 1,485 8,308
Income befare subsidiaries’ i
undistributed earnings .. ...... 49,097 39,827 32,332
(Excess distributions by
subsidiaries over earnings)/
equrty in undistributed
garnings of subsidiaries ... .... {3,772} 19,162 24,208
Netincome ......... L .. $45325 58080 56,540

Statements of Condition

{dollars in thausands) ! December 31,

Assets; { | 2006 2005
Cash in subsidiary bank . ............ $ 14,133 12,603
Investments in subsidiaries .. ........ 225,536 216,647
Securities available for'sale .. ..... ... 7.142 6,841
Other assets ....... ': .............. — 3

Totalassets ....L......... ... $246,811 236,094

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity: I

Accrued expenses and pther fiabilities .. § 7,288 7,433

Total liabilities .. ... ... i 7,288 7,433
Shareholders’ equity . ! .............. 1239 523 228,661

Total liabilities and shareholders’

gquity ........ Lo $246 811 236,094

| m
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Statements of Cash Flows

{dollars in thousands}) Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents:

Cash flows from operating activities;
Netincome ..................... $45,326 58989 56,540
Adjustments to reconcile net income
to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Excess distributions by
subsidiaries over earnings/
(equity in undistributed

earnings of subsidiaries) .... 3,772 (19,162) (24,208) -
Net gain on sales of securities . .. (21) (4,068} (21,157) ‘
Met change in other assets and
accrued expenses .......... {163) (943) 4,764
Total adjustments ........... 3,588 (24,173) (40,601) f
Net cash provided by operating
activities .. ...l 48,913 34,816 15,939

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales of securities

availableforsale ............. 156 14,360 57,997
Purchases of securities available
forsale ..................... (396) (12,166) (29,951)
Net cash (used in)/provided by :
investing activities ......... (240) 2,194 28,046

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from exercise of stock
options and related tax benefits . .. 584 3,818 9,281
Dividendspaid ................. (47,890) (44,905) (44,504)
Payments to acquire treasury stock .. (8,801) (14,846} (13,482)
Proceeds frem sales of treasury

stock ............. e 8,964 10996 7,887
Net cash used in financing
activities ................ (47,143} {44,937} (40,818)
Net increase/{decrease} in cash and
cash equivalents .. .......... 1,530 (7,927} 3,167
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year .............. 12,603 20,530 17,363
Cash and cash equivalents at '
endofyear ................... $14,133 12,603 20,530

Supplemental Information
Increase in dividends payable ... ..... $ 17 787 69
Change in unrealized (loss)/gain on
securities available for sale —
OPOSS et {(40) 4,138 19328
Change in deferred tax effect on
unrealized loss/(gain) on securities

availableforsale .......... 16 (1,651} (7,707)




NEW YORK

Airmont Office
327 Route 59 East
Airmont, NY
Telephone: (845) 357-2435

Altamont Ave. Office
1400 Altamont Ave.
Schenectady, NY
Telephone: {518) 356-1317

Altamont Ave. West Ofﬁcle
1900 Altamont Ave.
Rotterdam, NY

Telephone:; (518) 355-1900

Ballston Spa Office
235 Church Ave.
Ballston Spa, NY
Telephone: {518} 885-1561
Bedford Hills Office
180 Harris Rd.
Bedford Hills, NY
Telephone: (914) 666-6230

Brandywine Office

State St. at Brandywine Ave.

Schenectady, NY
Telephone: {(518) 346-4295

Briarcliff Manor Office
64 Route 100

Briarcliff Manor, NY
Telephone: (914) 762-7133

Central Ave. Office
163 Central Ave.
Albany, NY
Telephone; (518) 426-7291
Chatham Office

193 Hudson Avenue
Chatham, NY
Telephone: (518) 392-0031

Clifton Country Road ()flﬁce
7 Clifton Country Rd.
Clifton Park, NY

Telephene: (518) 371-5002

Clifton Park OfTice
1018 Route 146
Clifton Park, NY
Telephone: (518) 371-8451

Cobleskill Office
RR #3,Rt. 7
Cobleskill, NY
Telephone: {518) 254-0290

Colonie Office

1892 Central Ave.
Colonie Plaza, Celonie, NY
Telephone: (518) 456-0041

Delmar Office

167 Delaware Ave.
Delmar, NY
Telephone: (518) 439-9841

R

East Greenbush Office

501 Columbia Tumpike
Rensselaer, NY
Telephone: (518) 479-7233

Elmsford Office

100 Clearbrook Rd.
Elmsford, NY

Telephone: {914) 345-1808

Exit 8/Crescent Rd. Office
CVS Plaza

Clifton Park, NY
Telephone: (518) 383-0039

Fishkill Office

1542 Route 52

Fishkill, NY

Telephone: (845) 836-8260

Freemans Bridge Rd. Office
Trustco Center

Glenville, NY

Telephone: (518) 344-7510

Glens Falls Office

3 Warren Street

Glens Falls, NY
Telephone: (518} 798-8131

Greenwich Office

131 Main St.

Greenwich, NY

Telephone: (518) 692-2233

Guilderland OfTice

3900 Carman Rd.
Schenectady, NY
Telephone: (518) 355-4890

Halfmoon Office

Country Dollar Plaza
Halfmoon, NY

Telephone: (518) 371-0593

Highland Office

3580 Route 9W

Highland, NY

Telephone: (845) 691-7023

Hoosick Falls Office

47 Main St.

Hoosick Falls, NY
Telephone: (518) 686-5352

Hudson Office

507 Warren St.

Hudson, NY

Telephone: (518) 828-9434

Hudson Falls OfTice

3376 Burgoyne Ave.
Hudson Falls, NY
Telephone: (518) 747-0886

Latham Office

1 Johnson Rd.

Latham, NY

Telephone; (518) 785-0761
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Loudon Plaza Office

372 Northern Blvd.

Albany, NY

Telephone: (518) 462-6668

Madison Ave, Office

1084 Madison Ave.
Albany, NY

Telephone: (518) 489-4711

Malta 4 Corners Office
2471 Route 8

Malta, NY

Telephone: {518) 899-1056

Malta Mall Office

43 Round Lake Rd.
Ballston Lake, NY
Telephone: (518) 899-1558

Mamaroneck Office

180 Boston Post Road
Mamaroneck, NY
Telephone: (914) 777-3023

Mayfair Office

286 Saratoga Rd.
Glenville, NY

Telephone: (518) 399-9121

Mechanicville Office

9 Price Chopper Plaza
Mechanicville, NY
Telephone: (518) 664-1059

Milton Office

2 Trieble Ave.

Ballston Spa, NY
Telephone: {518} 885-0498

Monroe Office

7H Rt 17M

Monroe, NY

Telephcne: (845) 782-1100

Mont Pleasant Office
Crane St. at Main Ave.
Schenectady, NY
Telephone:; (518) 346-1267

New City Office

20 Sguadron Blvd.

New City, NY

Telephone: (845) 634-4571

New Scotland Office

301 New Scotland Ave.
Albany, NY

Telephone: {518) 438-7838

Newton Plaza Office

588 New Loudon Rd.
Latham, NY

Telephone: (518) 786-3687

Niskavuna-Woodlzwn Office
3461 State St.
Schenectady, NY
Telephone:; {518) 377-2264

 Branch ELocaﬁons

Northern Pines Road Office
649 Route 9 |
Gansevoort, NY
Telephone; (518) 583-2634

Pomona Office

1581 Route 202

Pomona, NY ||

Telephone: (845) 354-0176

Poughkeepsie Ofﬁce

2656 South Rd.

(Route 9) |
F’oughkeepsna NY
Telephone: (845) 485-6419

Queensbury Offce

118 Quaker Fid

Suite 9, Queensbury, NY
Telephone: (51 8) 798-7226

Rotterdam Oﬂ' ice

Curry Road Shoppmg Ctr,
Rotterdam, NY

Telephone: (518) 355-8330
Rotterdam Square Office
93 W. Campbell Rd.
Rotterdam, NY

Telephone: (518) 377-2393

Route 2 Office— Latham
201 Troy-Schenectady Rd.
Latham, NY |

Telephone: (518) 785-7155

Route 7 Office
1156 Troy-Schenectady Hd.
Latham, NY ||
Telephone: (518) 785-4744

Saratoga Office c

34 Congress St

Saratoga Sprlngs NY
Telephone: (518) 587-3500

Scotia Office {

123 Mohawk Ave.

Scotia, NY

Telephone: (518) 372-9416

Sheridan Plaza Office
1350 Gerling St.
Schenectady, | NY

Telephone: (518) 377-8517

Slingerlands Off' ice

1569 New Scolland Avenue
Slingerlands, NY
Telephone: (518) 439-9352

South Glens Falls Office
Glengate Shopping Plaza
133 Saratoga Road, Suite 1
South Glens Ralls, NY
Telephone: (5|1 8) 793-7668

State Farm Rd Office
2050 Western Ave
Guilderland, NY
Telephone: (5?8) 452-6913

|
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Branch Locations

State St. Albany Office

112 State St.

Albany, NY

Telephone: {518) 436-9043

State St. Schenectady Office
320 State St.

Schenectady, NY
Telephone: (518) 377-3311

Stuyvesant Plaza Office
Western Ave. at Fuller Rd.
Albany, NY

Telephone: (518) 489-2616

Tanners Main Office

345 Main St.

Catskill, NY

Telephone: (518) 943-2500

Tanners West Side Office
238 West Bridge St.
Catskill, NY

Telephone: {518) 943-5090

Troy Office

5th Ave. and State St.
Troy, NY

Telephone; (518) 274-5420

Union Street East Office
1700 Union St.
Schenectady, NY
Telephone: (518) 382-7511

Upper Union Street Office
1620 Union St.
Schenectady, NY
Telephone: (518) 374-4056

Ushers Road Office

308 Ushers Rd.

Bailston Lake, NY
Telephone: (518) 877-8069

Valatie Office

2929 Route 9

Valatie, NY

Telephone; (518) 758-2265

Wappingers Falls Office
1480 Route 9

Wappingers Falls, NY
Telephone: (B45) 298-9315

West Sand Lake Office
3707 NY Rt. 43

West Sand Lake, NY
Telephone: (518) 674-3327

Wilton Mall Office

Route 50

Saratoga Springs, NY
Telephone: (518) 583-1716

Wolf Road Office

34 Wolf Rd.

Albany, NY

Telephone: (518) 458-7761

Wynantskill Office
134-136 Main St., Rt. 66
Wynantskill, NY

Telephone: (518) 286-2674
5

Bank Corp NY
Sarasota Office
FLORIDA 2704 Bee Ridge Road
Apollo Beach Office Sarasota, FL
6434 Apollo Beach Bivd. Telephone: (941) 929-9457
Apocllo Beach, FL .
Telephone: (813)649-0460  Jeee I N
Clermont Office Clermont, FL
12305 US Route 27 Unit 108 Telephone: (352) 243-9511
FL
Clermont, Tuskawilla Roagd Office

Telephone: (352) 243-2563

Colonial Drive Office

4450 East Colonial Dr.
Orlando, FL

Telephone: (407) 895-6393

Curry Ford Road Office
Shoppes at Andover, Suite 116
3020 Lamberton Boulevard
Orlando, FL

Telephone: (407) 277-9663

Dean Road Office

3920 Dean Rd.

Orando, FL

Telephone; (407) 657-8001

East Colonial Office

12901 East Colonial Drive
Orlando, FL

Telephone: {407} 275-3075

Lake Mary Office

350 West Lake Mary Bivd.
Sanford, FL

Telephone: (407) 330-7106

Leeshurg Office
1330 Citizens Blvd., Suite 101

- Leesburg, FL

Telephone: (352) 365-1305

Longwood Office

1400 West State Rd.
Longwood, FL

Telephone (407) 339-3396

Maitland Office

9400 US Rt. 17/92, Suite 1008
Maitland, FL

Telephone: (407) 332-6071

Orange City Office

902 Saxon Blvd.

QOrange City, FL
Telephone: (386) 775-1392

Osprey Office

1300 South Tamiami Trail
Osprey, FL

Telephone: (941) 918-3380

Oviedo Office

1875 West County Road 419
Suite 600

Qviedo, FL

Telephone: {407) 365-1145

Rinehart Road Office

1185 Rinehart Road
Sanford, FL

Telephone: (407) 268-3720

1295 Tuskawilla Road
Winter Springs, FL
Telephone: (407) 695-5558
Villaggio Office

851 SR 434

Winter Springs, FL
Telephone: (407) 327-6064

MASSACHUSETTS

Pittsfield Office

1 Dan Fox Drive

Pittsfield, MA

Telephone; (413) 442-1330

NEW JERSEY

Ramsey Office

385 N. Franklin Turnpike
Ramsey, NJ

Telephone: (201) 934-1429

VERMONT

Bennington Office

215 North St.

Benningion, VT
Telephone: (802) 447-4952
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TrustCo Bank Corp NY Officers and Board of Directors|
OFFICERS BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PRES[DENTAND,CH]EF EXECUTIVE OFFICER * Joséph Lucarelli ;
Robert J. McCormick President

Traditional Builders '|

EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT AND Residential Construction

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER Thomas O. Maggs

Robert T. Cushing, President I
Maggs & Assoc:ates
EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT AND Insurance Agency f
CHIEF BANKING OFFICER Anthony J. Marinello, M.D., Ph.D.
Scot R. Salvador Physician .
SECRETARY Robert A. McCormlck
Chairman

Thomas M. Poitras TrustCo Bank Corp NY

Robert J. McCormnck
President and Chief Executive Officer

ASSISTANT SEC['}ETARIES
Robert M. Leonard

Sharon J. Parvis TrustCo Bank Corp NY }
Directors of 'ﬁrustCo Bank Corp NY ;‘;'r:'r?é? D. Powers ;
are also Directors|of Trustco Bank Powers & Co.. LLC

FLORIDA ADVISORY BOARD MEMBERS Consulting ~

Brian C. Dowdell M D., M. S.
Jefirey R. Jontz
Cinda S. Mersel -

Charles R. Orden William J. Purdy

Sanford C. Shugart, Ph.D. President |
Kathleen R. Walters Welbourne & Purdy Realty, Inc.
Real Estate

HONORARY D;IRECTORS

Lionel Q. Bartholq
M. Norman Brickman
Bernard J. King
Nancy A. McNamara
William H. Milton, 1

Trustco Bank Officers i ‘

H

John S. Morris, Ph.D.
James H. Murphy, D.D.S.
Richard J. Murray, Jr.
Daniel J. Rourke, M.D.

. Anthony M. Salerno
 Edwin Q. Sallsbury

- William F. Terry

. Harry E. Whittingham, Jr.

|
PRESIDENT ANDE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Robert J. McCormic'k

EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT
AND CHIEF FINANCIAL
OFFICER
Robert T. Cushing

EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT
AND CHIEF BANKING OFFICER
Scot R. Salvador

AUDITOR
Kenneth E. Hughes! Jr.

ACCOUNTING/FINANCE
Vice Presidents
Michael M. Ozimek
Daniel R. Saullo

BRANCH ADMINISTRATION
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Vice President
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TRUSTCO

Bank Corp NY
General Information
ANNUAL MEETING CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
Monday, May 14, 2007 5 Sarnowski Drive
10:00 AM Glenville, NY 12302
Mallozzi's Restaurant {518) 377-3311

1930 Curry Road
Schenectady, NY 12303

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN

A Dividend Reinvestment Plan is available to shareholders of TrustCo Bank Corp NY. It provides for the reinvest-
ment of cash dividends and optional cash payments to purchase additional shares of TrustCo stock. The Plan

has certain administrative charges and provides a convenient method of acquiring additional shares. Trustco Bank
acts as administrator for this service and is the agent for shareholders in these transactions. Shareholders who
want additional information may contact the TrustCo Shareholder Services Department at (518) 381-3601.

DIRECT DEPOSIT OF DIVIDENDS

Electronic deposit of dividends, which offers safety and convenience, is available to TrustCo shareholders who
wish to have dividends deposited directly to personal checking, savings or other accounts. Electing direct deposit
will not affect the mailing of annual and quarterly reports and proxy materials. If you would like o arrange direct
deposit, please write the TrustCo Shareholder Services Department at the corporate headquarters address listed
on this page.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AT TRUSTCO
Trustco Bank is an Affirmative Action Equal Cpportunity Employer.

FORM 10-K

TrustCo Bank Corp NY will provide, without charge, a copy of its Form 10-K upon written request. Requests
and related inquiries should be directed to Thomas M. Poitras, Secretary, TrustCo Bank Corp NY, P.O. Box 380,
Schenectady, New York 12301-0380. '

CODE OF CONDUCT

TrustCo Bank Corp NY will provide, without charge, a copy of its Code of Conduct upon written request. Requests
and related inquiries should be directed to Sharon J. Parvis, Vice President-Personnel, TrustCo Bank Corp NY,
P.O. Box 1082, Schenectady, New York 12301-1082.

NASDAQ SYMBOL: TRST
The Corporation’s common stock trades on The Nasdaq Stock MarketS™ under the symbol TRST. There are
approximately 15 thousand shareholders of record of TrustCo common stock.

SUBSIDIARIES:

Trustco Bank ORE Subsidiary Corp.
Glenville, New York Glenville, New York
Member FDIC

{and its wholly owned subsidiary,
Trustco Vermont Investment Company
Bennington, Vermont)

TRANSFERAGENT

Trustco Bank

Securities Department

P.O. Box 380 '

Schenectady, New York 12301-0380

Trustco Bank® is a registered service mark with the U.S. Patent & Trademark Office.
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Share Price Information

The following graph shows changes_over a five-
year period in the|value of $100 invested in: (1)
TrustCo's common stock; {2) Russell 2000 and (3)
an industry group|of seventeen other regional bank
holding companies compiled by SNL Financial LC,
called the Superregmnal Bank Index. The fifteen-
year period is presented in addition to the five-year
period required bv the S.E.C. because it provides
additional perspective, and TrustCo management
believes that longer-term performance is of greater
interest to TrustCo shareholders. The fifteen-year
graph uses the leue of $100 invested in (1)
TrustCo’s common stock, (2) Russell 2000, and (3)
an industry group of seventeen other reglonal bank
holding compames compiled by SNL Financial LC,
called the Superreglonal Bank Index. The source for
this information i |= compiled by SNL Financial and
they no longer report the S&P 500 Index which was
presented in priof years. Therefore TrustCo has cho-
sen to present th Russell 2000, and the SNL

| |

o -_Superreglonal Bank Index and have/eliminated the

S&P 500. The banks comprising the . Superregional
Bank Index are: BB&T Corp., Comenca Inc., Fifth
Third Bancorp, First Horizon Natlonal Corp.,
Huntington Bancshares Inc., KeyCorp, M&T Bank
Corp., Marshall & Iisley CorporatlonI National City
Corp., PNC Financial Services Group, Inc., Popular
Inc., Regions Financial Corp., SunTrust Banks Inc.,
u.s. Bancorp, Wachowa Corp., Wells Fargo & Co.,
and Zions Bancorp

The S&P 500 index is not included in the 2006
graphs as the vendor, SNL Fmancnal LC, no longer
provides that information. If $100 was mvested in the
S&P 500 on December 31, 2001 that investment
would be worth $135.03 as of December 31, 2006.
The year-end pre-tax values of each investment are
based on share prlce appreciation plus dividends
paid, with cash dividends reinvested the date they
were paid. !

| ﬁ TrustCo Bank Corp NY ! i l '
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Period Ending ‘l

Index 12/31/01  12/31/02  12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06
TrustCo Bank Corp NY 100.00 89.97 115.44 ' 126.60 119.65 113.30
Russell 2000 100.00 79.52 117.09 , 138.55 144'..86 171.47
SNL Superregional Banks 100.00 103.11 132.39 146.75 147172 170.10
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